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was both an honour and pleasure to assume in 2008 the roles of Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of Titanium Asset Management Corp only tempered slightly

by the crisis in the global financial markets that developed during the course of the year

As the financial storm has swept over us it has

deve oped nto the most serious challenge to the

stability of the global financial system in the post war

years The crisis has had dramatc consequences

already with the collapse or forced sale of severa

leading investment banks and the provision of huge

sums of public money to repair the balance sheets of

commercial banks leading in some cases to effective

or actual nationalisation

It is too early to tell how long and how deep the

consequent economic recession will be but its effects

will be felt for generation The ncrease in public

sector debt implied by the financial rescue and fiscal

stimulus packages being announced are in some cases

unsustainable in the medium term In countries such

as the US and UK the retrenchment to an economic

model based on savng and investment rather than on

debt will be painful Equally the beneficiaries of debt-

fuelled consumption such as China and Germany will

have to rebalance their economies too

One implication of ths is that savings rates in many

developed countries will have to rise in part to rebuild

the destruction of both individual and institutional

wealth that has occurred over the past eighteen

months Since the financal crisis has included as

financial crisis always seem to fraud and theft it will

be the responsibility of the asset management

industry to manage those savings competently

transparently and at sensible fees

that context am delighted with the progress that

we have made in implementing our business strategy

of acquiring and integrating asset management

companies wth good investment strategies skilled

professionals and establshed client relationships On

March 31st 2008 we acquired National Investment

Services bc with offices in Chicago and Mi waukee

On December 31st 2008 we acquired Boyd Watterson

Asset Management LLC frm in eveland that traces

its roots back to 1928 Both these excellent firms were

attracted by what we are building at Titanium and

senior officers of both firms have been given

important new management roles within Titanium

Another significant mIestone is that we filed as we

committed to Form 10 registration statement with

the Securities and Exchange Commission in July 2008

which became effective in September 2008 From that

date we have been US public reporting company

In the near term our efforts are focused on integrating

our four businesses and achievng efficiencies

particularly in administration and operations We are

also reorganising and addng to our sales team Sn

that we can cross sell to our clients and prospects the

full range of our products

The following report and financial statements provide

more detail on the progress that we have made in the

eghteen months since our mit al public offering in

June 2007 We have confidence in our business

strategy and hope to be able to attract more firms to

join us at Titanium during the course of 2009

Nigel Wightman



Nigel Wightman 55 is Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer ofT tanium hay ng been founder

Director of the company He has 33 years expenence in

the international asset management ndustry and has

worked in London and Hong Kong From October

2005 to September 2007 he served as the managng

partner
of Pa kfield Capital LLP From 1997 to 2005 he

was managing director of State Street Global Advsors

Umited in that role he was respons ble for form ng and

was director of hfe insurance company and several

mutual fund and asset management companies He

also carred out number of acquisitons He served as

managng director of Srate Street Bank Europe

Limited and director of State Street Banque SA in

Pars From 1984 to 1995 he worked for the NM

Rothschild Group in several of its asset management

businesses including serving for four
years as head of

Asia Pacific based in Hong Kong His other

responsibilities at Rothschild included serving as the

head of fixed-income currency and international

equities and head of mutual funds He sits on the

investment committees of the Royal Institute for

Internationa Affairs and Brasenose College Osford He

received an M.A in Poltics Philosophy and Economics

from Brasenose oollege Oxrora ann an Pfi in

Economics from Nuffeld Co
lege

Oxford

Robert Kelly 64 is Vice Chairman of

tanium He is also Chairman and Chief Execut ye

Officer of National Investment Services Inc NIS

having founded that company in 1994 Prior to

foundng he worked at its predecessor Natonal

Investment Services of America Inc from 1990 to 1994

Prior to that he was pres dent of Kelly Associates Inc

which provded administrative services to pension and

health plans unt ts sale 1990 He is
past president

of the Society of Professional Benefit Administrators

and served as director of the nternational

Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans for 20
years

He

has also served as vice chairman of Saint Marys

University of Minnesota He attended the
University

of

Notre Dame and Florida Atlantic University

Larry Haslee 49 is Chief Financial Officer

and Company Secretary of Titanium He is so CEO of

NIS He joined NIS in 1994 pr otto that he worked as

the Controller of Nationa Investment Serv ces of

America nc from 1987 to 1994 In that role

responsib ities ncluded financ al reporting

comp iance human resources and techno ogy From

1982 to 1987 he worked at Arthur Young Company

as member of ts entrepreneurial group where he

provided audit review and tax services to closely-held

businesses He is Certifed Pubic Accountant and

graduated from the Un versity of Wisconsin

Mi waukee wth BBA in Accountng

Robert Brooks 54 is Managing Director of

Titanum th responsibi ity for insttutiona

distribution He is also an Executive Vice President of

NIS which he joined ii 1994 Prior to HIS he worked at

Zenith Admir istrators nc from 1990 to 1994 as vice

president and Chicago branch office manager He

served in the same capac ty
at Kelly Associates Inc

from 1984 to 1990 Prior to Kelly Associates nc he

worked the administration of large pension plans

and was fie service officer with the Teamsters

Cenrral Srates Pension Rind from 1979 to 1984 He is

an Investment Management Committee Member of

the Internationa Foundation of Employee Benefit

Pans He attended St Thomas College and graduated

from Chicago State Unvers ty

John Jack Fisher 54 is Managing

Director ofTtan um with responsibil ty
for retai

distribution He is also CEO of Wood Asset

Management nc and Sovereign Advisers LLC He was

founding partner in the investment banking firm

Wilson/Bennett Company from 1987 and served as

chairman and president of its subs diary

son/Bennett Capita Management Inc until 2006

From 2006 to 2007 he acted as consultant to that

company Prior to Wilson/Bennett Captal

Management Inc he worked as vice president of E.F

Hutton Co from 1978 to 1987 He worked as an

investment broker from 1977 to 1978 at Dean Witter

Reynolds pr or to whch he served as staff

ecuiiumis at The Public Uti tie Conmvon ExecuHve

Serv ces Corporation non profit organisation that

prov des financial consulting services to developing

countries He graduated wth BS in Accountng from

Virg Tech

Brian Gevry CFA 42 Managing

Director of Titanium and Co Head of Fixed ncome He

also serves as CEO and Co CO of Boyd Watterson

Asset Management LLC Boyd He has been CEO of

Boyd nce 2006 From 2000 through 2006 he was

Chief Operations Officer and Co ClO of Boyd As

manag ng partner of Boyd he led the Firms

management buyout from Duff Phe ps Investment

Management Company 2000 Pror to the

management buyout he served in various investment

and management roes at Duff Phelps sing to

Executive Vice President He became Chartered

Financial Analyst in 1994 He graduated from Case

Western Reserve
University

with an MBA and

concentraton in Finance He graduated from

Cleveland State University with BA in Political

Sc ence and EngFsh

Robert Siefert CPA 60 is Managing

Director of Titanium and is co-Head of Fixed Income

He also President and ClO of HIS which he joined in

1994 He previously worked for Nationa Investment

Services of America Inc where he was vice president

and treasurer from 1978 to 1994 From 1985 to 1994

he was also fixed-income portfolio manager He

acted as Controller of National Investment Services of

America Inc from its foundation in 1975 until 1977

when he also became assistant vice president From

1971 to 1973 he worked for Peat Marwick Mitchell

Co now KPMG LLP as staff accountant in audit

and tax He is Certified Public Accountant and

graduated from the University of Wisconsn

Whitewater with BBA in Accounting



rrlitanium has four wholly owned subsidiaries each with

its own investment professionals investment strategies and clients

Boyd Watterson Asset

Management LLC BWAM
is an nvestment management firm with offices

ocated in Cleveland Ohio offering both fxed

ncome and equty strategies The firms heritage

dates back to 1928

BWAMs client base is broadly dversified across

public funds Taft Hartley funds endowments

foundations corporate pension funds high net

worth individuals and broker/dea er sponsored

wrap programs Its primary focus is in the fixed

income marketplace wth product offerings

across vanous maturity ranges as well as broad

market strategies It also manages domestic and

international equities primariI for to high net

worW torts

is an investment management firm with offices

located Chicago Illinois and MIwaukee

Wisconsin The firms heritage dates back to 1968

NISs clients are nstitutional with particular

focus on the penoon and employee benefit

segments of the marketplace ts principal focus

lies in fixed income where its product line up is

broad divershed across maturites sectors and

credt quality NIS also distributes the nvestment

products of Attalus Capeal LP an alternat yes

manager based in Phdadelphia Pennsylvania

and Mastholm Asset Management LLC an

international equty manager based in

SxtrIe Washniton

National Investment Services

Inc 7s/IS

WWW.BOYDWATTERSON.COM WWW.N .NET



Sovereign Advisers LLC

Sovereign
is an investment management firm with

offices located Charlotte North

Cam na with focus on the management

of hghlv customized fixed income

portfolios The firms heritage dates back

to 1997

Sovereigns chents are primarily hgh net

worth individuals and mid-size

corporations who come to it either

directly or via number of broker/dealer

sponsored wrap programs These

products include both taxable and

municipal strategies for indviduals and

nstituton ahke

WWW.SOVADVSERSCOM

Wood Asset Management Inc

Wood
an investment management firm

located in Sarasota Florida provid ng

range of US equity and balanced

strateges to variety of ndivdual and

institutional ci ents The firms hertage

dates back to 1994

Woods clients are both nstitutional

Taft Hart ey accounts foundations and

endowments and high net worth clients

who come to it either directly or via

broker/dee er sponsored wrap programs

Wood invests prmarily in large-cap stocks

where finds the greatest transparency

and iqiidty

WWW.WOODASSETCOM



have range of investment strategies delivered by our four companies

MANAGED

Short Term Fixed Income

High Qa ity Intermediare ed incnme

Intermediate Fixed Income

Hgh Quality Core Fixed Income

Total Return Core Fixed Income

Discip med Core Fixed Income

Ultra Enhanced Core Fixed Income

US Equities

Ba anced

nternational Equities

Short Duration Fixed Income

Intermedate Fxed Income

Intermediate Plus Fxed Income

Intermediate Aggregate Fixed Income

Aggregate Core Fixed Income

Aggregate Core Plus Fixed Income

Immunized/Liability Matching Fixed Income

Fixed Income Transition Management

Preferred Stock Funds

Fixed Income Arbitrage Funds

Enhanced Cash Fixed ncome

Limited Duration Fixed Income

Intermediate Taxable Fixed Income

Intermediate Mun cipal Fixed Income

Core Fixed Income

Total Return Fixed Income

Diversified Fixed Income Strategy

Managed xed ncome Solution

US Relative Value Equity

US Core Equty

Balanced

Quantitatve Strategies

DSTRBUTED

Multistrategy Hedge Fund

Long Short Equity Fund

International Equ ties

At 31st December 2008 the

distribution of our managed
Boyd

assets was as follows

us

NTRNATONAL

F0r57

NIS

Sovereign

Wood



Our People

At 31st December we had 94 employees

BOYD

NS

SOVEREGN

WOOD

TTAWUM

TOTAL

The distribution of our employees by function

was as follows

Our Clients

At 31st December 2008 our managed assets totalled

US$7.6bn and drstributed assets were US$0.8bn to

give total of fee generating assets of US$8 4bn

These assets were managed as follows

The distribution of managed assets by type of

ient was as fo lows

Our Partners

We have many mportant relationships with other

fund management firms and distributors We have in

the broker dealer community many relationships in

which we manage money under single or dua

contract often in WRAP programs For our

institutional cfents we have both detribution

relationshps and subadvisory contracts We list

below some of these major business relationsh ps

BOYD

Morgan Stanley and Co Incorporated

Merrill Lynch Co

Edward Jones Co

AdvisorPort Inc

Fund Quest Incorporated

First Globa Advisors Inc

ARIS Corporation of America

Stife Nicholas Company Incorporated

Md Atlantic Financial Management Inc

Envestnet Asset Management Inc

UBS nanciaI Services Inc

RW Baird Co.

MS

Attalus Capital

Mastholm Asset Management LLC

Stone Harbor

Christenson Investment Partners

USS3.Cbn

US$2 2bn

US$0 9bn

US$0 Bbr

SOVEREIGN

Raymond James Financial Services Inc

Lockwood Advisors Inc

UVEST Financial Services Group

Optimum Investment Advisors Inc

NBC Securities

American Securities Group Inc

Essex Financial Services Inc

AXA Equitable

Charles Schwab

Wealth Trust Advisors Inc

WOOD
Raymond James Financial Servces Inc

RBC Gain Rauccher

Envestnet Asset Management Inc

Morgan Keegan

Wachova

Placemark

Wal Foss Advisors Inc

26 BOYD

30 NS

DSTR BUTEO

19 SOVEREF

WOOD

94 TOTAL

542 9br

St 2.9b ii

US 0.Bbn

U5S .lbr

US$0.7bn

US$8.4br

FNVESTMENT OPERATFONS

SALES MARKETING

INv 5MENT MANAGEMENT

ADM NISTRATFON

TOTAL

14 PENSION FUNDS

OTHER NST UTIONALCLENTS

BROKER OEA ER WRAPl CONTRACT

26
OTHER RETA CLIENTS

94



The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008

PRNCDPAL ACTVTES
The principal activities of the Company are the acquisition and management of asset management businesses

BUSINESS REVEW
review of the Companys activities is contained in the Chairmans Statement and the rev ew on pages to above

RESULTS AND DMDENDS

commentary on financial results is given on page 14 below followed by financial statements starting on page 15

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend

DRECTORS SHAREHOLDNGS

The Directors who held office during the period are listed on page 30 below Their beneficial interests in the shares and warrants of the Company at the

end of the period under review were as follows

Common Restrkted

shares of shares of

US$O.0001 each USSO.0001 each Warrants

Thomas Hami ton 102119 nil

Raymond Suplee
nil nil

Nigel Wightman 353179 153179 200000

Shuky Abramovich nil nil

Avigdor Kaplan
nil nil

Robert Kelly
nil nil

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDNGS

The Company has been notified of the following interests at 31 December 2008 other than interests of the Directors of 3% or more in the Issued

ordinary share capita of the Company

At 31 December 2008

Number of

Name Common Stock Note

Clal Finance Ltd 10485400 51.2

Wellington Management Company LLP 3000332 14.7

Whitewater Place LLC 11 29695 5.5

HSBC Global Custody Nominee UK Ltd 653705 3.2

NOTES

Fnace Ltd avo hOW 10485400 Warrts whic are exercdable or 0485400 Shams ..ommo toc

Well ngton Management Comparry LLP so holds 2837 100 Warrants which are exercrsab for 2837 tOO of Common Stock Wellington Management Company LLP ho ds Shares and

Warrarts for numerous nvestment adv sory dents

Whewater Place LLC also ho ds 236151 shares of Restricted Stock which will automatica convert nb Shares of Commor Stock on one so-one bass upon the happening of certa

events

HS8C Global Custody Nomiree so ho ds 344 600 Warrants which are exercrsable for 344 600 Shares of Common Stock

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The factors influencing assets managed assets over the year were as follows

US$ mHon

Assets at the start of the year
3071

NIS acquisition
2884

New accounts
613

Accounts terminated 1296

Inflows/outflows to existing accounts 143

Market movements 412

Boyd acquisition
2856

7573Assets at year end



SGNFCANT TRANSACTONS

At special meetng of shareholders of the Company held on 26 March 2007 the acquisition of all the issued share capital of National Investment

Services Inc was approved for an nitial consideration of $29684216 in cash plus maxmum deferred payment of approximately $6900000 payable in

cash and shares This transaction completed on 31 March 2008

At the special meeting shareholders representing 421 3000 shares voted aganst the resolution and elected to have shares repurchased As result the

Company repurchased 2208452 shares or 52.42% of shares submitted for repurchase Following on from that repurchase 333777 shares and 83444

restncted shares held by management were cancelled by the Company

On 31 December 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of all of the membership interests of Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC for an nitial

consideration of $7500000 in cash plus deferred payments of 192000 shares and maxmum of $8000000 payable in cash and shares The Company

also agreed to ssue 58000 shares to certain employees in connection with this acquistion

CHARTABLE AND POLTKAL CONTRBUTIONS

The Company did not make any poltical or charitable donations during the year

GOING CONCERN

On the bass of current projections and having regard to the working captal aval able to the Company the Directors consider that the Company has

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly the Drectors have adopted the going concern basis in

the preparat on of the accounts

DIRECTORS RESPONSBLTIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and financial statements in accordance with applcable law and United States generally accepted

accountng principles US GAAP In preparng those financial statements the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consstently

made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any mater al departures disclosed and explaned in the fnancial

statement and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company wil continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to ensure that the financia statements comply with US GAAP They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Company and hence for takng reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Each of the Directors listed above represent that

so far as each Director is aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Companys auditors are unaware and

each Drector has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as Director in order to make himself aware of any re evant audit information and

to establish that the Companys auditors are aware of that information

AUDITORS

Cherry Bekaert Holland LLP have agreed to offer themselves for re-appontment as auditors of the Company and reso ution requesting ratification of

their re appointment will be presented at the annual general meetng

On behalf of the board

Nigel Wightman



INTRODUCTION

The Board recognises the importance of sound corporate governance and has taken note of the polcies and procedures which reflect the Principles of

Good Governance and the Code of Best Practice as published by the Committee on Corporate Governance commonly known as the Combined Code

as are commensurate with the Companys size stage of development and resources and takng into account that Titanium is incorporated the

rather than the U.K notwithstandina that the rules of the London Stock Exchanae do not require companies that have secunties traded on AIM to

forma ly comply with the Combined Code The Company does not current comply wth the Combined Code on corporate governance due to its size

BOARD COMPOSITION

For so long as Clal Finance holds at least 35o of the entire issued and outstanding share captal of Ttanium the Company must have not more than three

directors who are executive officers two directors who are ndependent and up to six directors who may be apponted and removed at any time by Cal

Finance each Clal Director Each Directors term wIl continue until the next annual genera meet ng of Stockholders vacancy on the Board other

than al Drector may be OIled by vote of the majority of drectors though less than quorum or by sole remaining Director or Stockholders at

the next annual general meetng or special meeting Any Director may resign effectve upon gving written not ce to the Board unless the nooce

specifies later time for that reognation to become effective

majority of the Board shall constitute quorum The Board currently comprsed of two ExecuOve Deectors and four Non Evecut ye Deectors

The Board has agreed not to appoint Senior Independent Director pursuant to the Combned Code Given the size of the organisaton and the policy of

active dialogue maintaned wth institutional Stockholders by senior management the Board is of the opimon that the appointment of Senior

Independent Director wou not assist further in communication with Stockholders

BOARD COMMITTEES

The principal standing commttees appointed by the Board are as fol ows

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsib for monitoring the quality of internal control ensuring that the financial performance of the Company is proper

measured and reoorted on and for reviewino reports from the Cnmpanyc audirnrc relating to the Cnmpanys accntinring and inrernal contrnls only

members of the Audt Committee have the right to attend Audt Committee meetings However other individuals such as the Chief Executive Officer

Chief Fnancial Officer other Directors the head of compliance and representatives from the finance function may be nvited to attend al or part of any

meeting as and when appropriate The external auditor will be nvited to attend meetings of the Audit Committee on regular basis Meetings of the

Audit Commttee were held three tmes in 2008 to discuss general audit matters and the intenm and fu year reports and statements The Audt

Committee is authorized by the Board of Directors to investigate any acnvity wohin its terms of reference It is authorized to seek any information

requires from any employee and all employees will be drected by the Board of Directors to cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee

Currently the Audit Committee consists of Raymond Suplee CPA as Chairman Thomas Hamkton and Yehoushua Abramovich copy of the terms of

reference for the Audit Committee is avalable on the Company web site www.ti am.com

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the terms and conditions of service including the remuneration and grant of optons to

Executive Directors under the Companys share option plans from time to me Only members of the Committee have the right to attend Committee

meetings However other individuals such as other Non Executve Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its subsidiares may be

invited to attend al or part of any meeting as and when appropriate and in any event shall be consulted by the Committee on proposals relaong to the

remuneration of the other Executive Directors The Committee held one meetng in 2008 The Committee authorized to take such externa advice as it

shall consider appropriate to determine the remuneration terms of service and incentives of the Executive Drectors and such other members of the

senior executive management of the Company as is designated to consider

The Committee has no author
ty

in relation to the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors The Remuneration Committee consists of Yehoushua

Abramovich as Chairman Thomas Hamilton and Raymond Suplee CPA

copy of the terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is avakable on the Companys website www.ti am.com

The Board does not beleve at tho stage of the Companys current ze and development that the estabhshment of Nomination Committee is

appropriate



WORKINGS OF THE BOARD

To enable the Board to function effectve and allow Directors to discharge their responsibilties ful and mely access is given to all relevant

information In the case of Board meetings this consists of comprehensive set of papers including regular business progress reports and discussion

documents regarding specific matters Management has the authority to make decisions regarding the day today operat ons of the Company and the

implementation of the directinn and decisions of the Board

The Board meets on pre-scheduled basis at least four times each year and more frequently when business needs require Prior to each Board meeting

the Directors receive comprehensive papers and reports on the issues to be discussed at the meeting The Board has schedule of matters reserved to it

for decision and is responsible for formulating reviewing and approving the Companys strategy budgets acquisitions disposals and major tems of

capital expenditure The Board met ten times 200B

There is an agreed procedure for Directors to take independent professional advice if necessary at the Companys expense

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board as we as Audit and Remuneration Committees held during the 2008

financial year

Number of meetings held Board Audit Committee Remuneration Committee

Executive

Wghtman 10

R.Kely

Non-Executive

Kaplan

Abramovich

Suplee

hamilton

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board does not believe that at this stage of the Companys current development the need to undertake formal performance evaluation of the

Board or its Commttees however this will continue to be revewed annually

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each Director is required to stand for re-electon at each annual general meeting of stockholders of the Company

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors abstain from any discussion or voting at fuli Board meetings or Remuneration Committee recommendations where the

recommendations have direct bearing on their own remuneraton package

COMMUNICATION

The Company places great deal of importance on communication with ts Stockholders The Company is required under AIM rules to publish half

yearly report as well as an Annual Report and Accounts Both are avalable on the Companys website or upon request to Stockholders and other partes

who have an interest in the Companys performance

The Company also holds an annual Stockholders meeting each year where Stockholders may ask questions of the management team



AUDITOR NDEPENDENCE

The Audit Committee has sole responsibility for assessing the independence of the external auditors Cherry Bekaert Holland L.L.P The Committee has

had due regard to the document published in May 2003 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales Reviewing Auditor

Independence Guidance for Audit Committees Each year the Commttee

seeks reassurance that the external auditors and their staff have no family financia employment nvestment or business relationship with the

Company To ths end the Committee requires the external auditors and their associates to confirm this in writing

assesses the likely mpact on the audtors independence and objectivity before awarding them any contract for additional services Audit

Committee approval is required for all non audt services provided by the ndependent auditors

has as standing agenda item at each Audit Committee meeting the consideration of auditor independence

AUDITORS

All of the current Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any information needed by the

Companys auditors for the purposes of their audit and to ensure that the auditors are aware of that information The Directors are not aware of any

relevant audit information of whch the auditors are unaware

US PUBLK REPORTING

The Companys common stock is regstered under Section 12g of the Unted States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act
As result the Company subject to periodc and current reporting and other Exchange Act requirements nformation that the Company files or

furnishes to the United States Securites and Exchange Commsson including annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10 current

reports on Form 8-K and proxy statements may be accessed in the Investor Relations section of our website www.ti-am.com Copes of our committee

charters and Code of Ethics are also available in the Investor Relat ons section of that website

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the forthcoming Annual General Meet ng of Stockholders reso utons will be put forward to re elect all the ex sting Directors as Directors of the

Corporation the electon of two such directors being controlled by Clal Finance



The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Titanium Asset Management Corp

Milwaukee Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanyng consolidated balance sheets of Ttanium Asset Management Corp and Subsidaries the Company as of December

31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operatons changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for the year ended

December 31 2008 and for the perod from February 2007 inception through December 31 2007 These consolidated financial statements are the

responsibrlity of the Companys management Our responsiblity is to express an opinon on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Onancial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting princip es used and signifcant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

conso idated fnancial statement presentation We beleve that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinon

our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly all matera respects the consolidated financial postion of the

Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the consoldated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008

and for the period from February 2007 inception through December 31 2007 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting prnciples

Cherry Bekaert Holland LL.P



he follow ng summar of the fnancial results for the year to 31 December 2008

Operating evenues were US$14675 000 This comprised full year of revenues from Wood and Sovereign and nine months from NIS Boyd was

purchased at year erd Of this total US$518000 were performance fees During 2009 we will benefit from full years revenue at all four

businesses

Administra lye expenses were US$16283000 Legs and atcountng ees were US$2166000 most of these expenses related to fling the Form 10

registrator statement and arc not expected to be recurring

Net interest income was US$1004000 Tss figure expected to decline partcularly if we are successfu in achieving further acquisitions

During he year we tool charge of US$4190000 resting to the amortisation of intangible assets We also took an impairment charge of

US$6533 000 largely reflecting the substantial fall in the US equity market and ts impact on the assets managed and revenues generated by

Wood

The loss was theefore JS$1 1327000 before tax and US$7 040000 after tax

Working captal at year coo was US$24300000 and total stockholders equity was US$92704000



in thousands except for share and per share amounts

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents Note 10 18753 19388

Securities avai able for sale Note 10 10683

Cash and cash equivalents held trust Note 55587

Accounts receivable 4041 388

Refundable income taxes Note 512

Other current assets 908 115

Total current assets 34897 75478

Securities availabe for sale Note 10 672

Property and equipment 543 19

Less accumulated depreciation 87 16

Property and equipment net 456

Goodwill Note 32757 21987

Intangible assets net Note 32206 15340

Deferred income taxes Note 4202 377

Totalassets 105190 113185

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 663 149

Accrued income taxes Note 657

Acqusition payments due NoteS 8145

Deferred revenues 273

Other current liabilities 1516 455

Total current liabilities 10597 1261

Acquisition payments due Note 1889

Total liabilities 12486 1261

Commitments and contingencies Notes and 12

Common stock subject to possible conversion 20000000 shares at conversion value Note 5558

Stockhoders equity Note

Common stock $00001 par va ue 54000000 shares authorized 20464002 and 22993731 shares issued

and outstanding at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Restricted common stock S0.0001 par value 720000 shares authorized 612716 and 696 160 shares issued

and outstandng at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Preferred stock $00001 par value 1000000 shares authorized none issued

Addtonal paid-in capital 99694 55892

Retained earnings defict 6597 443

Other comprehensive loss 163 --

Unearned con ipensatiun 232

Total stockholders equity 92704 56337

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 105190 113185

See notes to conso idated financial statements



in thousands except for per share amounts

Period from

February

Year Ended 2007 inception through

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

14675 2660

Operating expenses

Administrative

Amortizal1on of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Total operaung expenses

Operating loss

Other income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income loss before taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss

Net income loss per share

Basic

Diluted

Fee income

16283

4190

6533

27006

12331

1032

28

11327

4287

7040

034

0.34

2490

809

829

4128

1468

2191

723

280

443

0.04

0.03

See notes to consolidated Onancial statements



Common stock issued 2880 000

Restricted stock ssued

ssue of stock units Note 20000000

Stock issued in connection

wrth acquisition of Wood

and Soveregn Note 909091

Common stock redemption

Note 795360

Warrant ssued to placement

agent

Net income

Balance at December 31

2007

Transfer in repurchase

nghts not executed Note

Common stock redemption

Note

Unallocated shares acquired

with acquisiton of TIP

Note

Emp oyee share grants

Note

Net loss

Balance at December 31

2008

Common Stock

Shares held

For the year ended December 31 2008 and the period from February 22007 inception through December 31 2007

in thousands except for share amounts

Restricted Shares

Shares by TIP Amount Shares Amount

Additional Retained Other Com- Unearned Total

Paid-in Earnings prehensive Com- Stockholders

Capital Deficit Loss pensation Equity

20 20

52670

720000

52668

5000 5000

23840 3892 3892

2091 209

443 443

22993731 696160 55892 443 56337

55587 55587

2542 229 83444 12017 12017

97011

12500 232 232

7040 163 7203

20464002 97011 612 716 99694 6597 163 232 92704

See notes to consolidated fnancial statements



hi thousands

Perhid from

February

Year Ended 2007 through

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Cash flows from operaflng actvfles

Net ncome loss 7040 443

Adjustreents to reconci net ncomeloss to net cash provided by operating activties

Depreciation and amortiza or 4262 825

lmparment of intangible sets 6533 829

Accretron of qusition paynents 26

Deferred income taxes 3823 377

Lhanges in assets and liabi ites

Increase in accounts receivable 29 388

Increase in other current sets 607 115

Increase in accounts payable 511 149

lncreasedecrease income taxes 1070 657

Increase in other current habilit es 604 455

Net cash provded by used hi operathig acflvftes 633 2478

Cash flows from hivesthig acflvftes

Purchases of property and equipment 326 19

ash and cash equivalents he released from tust 55587 55587

urchase short to soour tFos ovo oble for salo 10651

urchase of securities avalab for sale 968

Cash pad for acqu sition of subs diaries net of cash acquired 31627 33965

Net cash provded by used hi hivesting activities 12015 89571

Cash flows from financing activities

ssuance of common stock its 120025

Costs assocated with share issue 9652

Common stock reoeemed 12017 3892

Net cash provided by used in flnandng activities 12017 106481

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 635 1Q58

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginnng 19388

Endng 18753 19388

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Income taxes paid 606

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities

Net unrealzed loss on securit es available for sale 163

Pad in capital attrhuted to common stock repurchase rghts not executed 55587

Fair value of placement aqen we rant 2091

Payments due ir conneclion wth acquisitions 10365

9cc rotes to consul dated nancal statements



thousands except share and per share amounts

NOTE NATURE OF BUSNESS

Titanium Asset Management Corp the Company was ncorporated on February 2007 The Company commenced operations as special purpose

acquisition company ro acquire one or more operatng companes enoaoed the asset manaQement industry The Company was admitted to trading on

AIM market operated by the London Stock Exchange on June 21 2007

On October 12007 the Company acquired all of the votng common stock of Wood Asset Management Inc Wood and all of the membership

interests of Sovereign Holdings LLC Sovereign two asset management firms On March 31 2008 the Company acquired al of the outstanding capta

stock of National Investment Services nc NIS third asset management frm After such business combinations the Company ceased to act as

special purpose acquisition company On December 31 2008 the Company acquired the membershp interests of Boyd Watterson Asset Management

LLC Boyd fourth asset management firm See Note for descrptons of these acquistions The Companys strategy is to manage these operating

companies as an integrated busness

NOTE SGMFKANT ACCOUNTING POLKES

These vonolidated Onancia statements have been prepared accordance wtb acountig prnciplc gnralIy arropred rho united Srares of

America summary of the Companys significant accounting policies are as fo lows

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and ts wholly owned subsidiaries All material nrercompany

balances and transactions have been iminated

Fee income Revenue is recognized when the follow ng critera are met evdence of an arrangement exists the price is fixed or determinable

collectability is reasonable assured and delivery has occurred or services have been rendered The Company bills its nvestment advisory fees in

accordance with the contractual arrangements and as services are performed Fees are calculated based on the fair value of the assets under

management and may be billed arrears or advance These amounts are inc uded in accounts receivable or deferred revenues in the accompanying

consoldated balance sheets As of December 31 2008 the Company had deferred revenue for services billed in advance of $273

nvestment advisory fees also include incentive fees that may be earned by the Company ncentive fee arrangements general entitle the Company to

participate on fixed percentage basis in the net profits earned by the limited iabilty companes to which NlS is the managing member and Cayman

Island exempted company to which HIS acts as an investment advisor The Companys participation percentage is multiplied by the net profits earned by

these managed companes to determine the amount of the incentive fee If losses are incurred the losses are netted aganst net profits before the

Company is eligible to participate in any ncentive fees Incentive fees if any are calculated and paid on an annual bass Pursuant to the preferred

accounting method under Emerging Issues Task Force TF Issue 96 Accounting for Management Fees Based on Formula such incentive fee

income is recorded at the conc usion of the performance period when all contngencies are resolved The Company recognized $518 incentive fees in

the year ended December 31 2008 and none for the period from February 2007 to December31 2007

Cash equivalents and concentration of credit risk For purposes of reporting cash flows the Company considers all highly liquid investments with an

original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents The Company periodica ly maintains cash balances with financial institutions which at

times may exceed insured imirs Management believes that the use of quality financial institutions minmizes the risk of loss assocated with cash and

cash equvalents

Investments in securities Investments in available for sale securities consist of corporate bond securities and an investment in commingled stock

fund None of the Companys securities are classifed as trading or held to maturity Ava lab for sale securities are stated at fair value and unrealized

holdog gains and losses net of the related deferred tax effect are reported as separate component of stockholders equity

Interest on corporate bond securities is accrued based on the terms of the securties Rca ized gains and losses including loss from declines in value of

specific securities determned by management to be other than-temporary are included in consolidated income Realzed gans and losses are

determined on the basis of the specific securtes sold

For the investment in the commingled stock fund realized gains and osses including losses from declines in value that are determined by management

to be other than temporary are included in consolidated income Realized gains or losses are determined on the basis of the sale of shares of the

commingled fund or distributions received from the commingled fund



thousands except share and per share amounts

air value of Franc/al instruments In accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SEAS No 107 Disclosure

About Fair Value of Financial Instruments esrrsated fair values have been determined by the Company using available market information and valuation

methodologies described below However considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estmates of fair value

Accordingly the estmates presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts the Company could realize current market exchange The use of

dfferent market assumprior or valuation methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair values The carrying amounts of cash accounts

recevab other current assets accounts payable acquisition payments due and other current iabilities approximate their fair values due to the

short term maturines of these nstrume sts

he Companys assets under management consist of equity and fxed income securities bed in client portfolios Equity securities are valued at the ast

losing price on the prirrary xc ange on whith the securties are traded Fixed-income securites are valued based on prices from independent sources

uch as isted market pri oi broker or dealer price quotations

Receivables and allowance foi doubtful accounts Accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms Management does nor

equire collateral from customers Management reviews accounts receivable on monthly basis to determine if any receivab es will potentially be

uncollecrible Inc uded the allowance for doubtful accounts is any balance considered uncollectible plus general reserve based on managements

assessrr ent of customers overa If nancial condition After attempts to collect recevab have failed the rece vable written off aga nst the

allowance At Dec err ber 2008 and 2007 management did not bel eve an allowance for doubtful accounts was necessary due to the nature of the

Fompany recevaf las and history of collections

Droperty and equipment Property and equipment stated at cost or acquired va ues Major penditures for property and equ pment are capita ized

while replacements mant uance and mnor repairs that do not improve the utility or extend the lives of the respectve assets are expensed as incurred

When assets are retred or otherwise disposed of their costs and related accumulated depreciaton are removed from the accounts and resulting gains or

osses are ncluded in income Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over estimated usefu lives of the related assets Deprecation is

based or the fo lowing mated useful ives Dffce furniture and fixtures and equipment to years

Business combinations quisit ons of businesses are accounted for usng the purchase method The cost of the busness combination measured as

the aggregate of the fair vs ues at the date of exchange of assets given liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Company

in exchange for control of acquiree plus ary costs direct attributable to the business combination The acquirees identfiab assets and liabilites

are reccgr ized at their far vs ues at the acquis ton date

Goodwill and intangible assets Goodwil represents the excess the cost of purchased businesses over the fair value of the net assets acquired

The Company tost the goodw balance for mpairment annua ly and between annual tests if crcumstances would require it The Comparys goodwi

test rig two-stek process svith the first step being test for potental impairment by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with ts carrying

amount includng qoodwill If the fair va ue the reporting un exceeds the carrying amount then no impairment exists the carryng amount of the

mportrg unit ext eeds the cad value the Company compietes the second step measure the amount of the impairmenF if any TbD Con pany

rompleres the annual test for impairment dur
rig

ts fourth quarter

dent fiable ntan 7ble asse are earned at amortized cost Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their useful ives and amontzation is

orn puted using the
straig

line method over their expected usefu lives Intangible and other long Ived assets are reviewed for impairment irs

ccordance with EAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS 144 pursuant to which an mpairment loss

recognized the carryino amount of long lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value Long lived assets are tested for recoverab
ity

whenever events of changes in cumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable

Advertising costs Adverti mg costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense was approxmacely $283 and $6 for the year ended December 31

008 and for the perioo from February 22007 inception to December 31 2007 respectively

perating leases Dperatir lease payments are recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term Contingent renta arising under

operating leases are recogr zed as an expense the period in which they are incurred In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into

operating leases such incer tives are recognized as liablity The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as reduction of rental expense on

straight Lne bas



thousands except share and per share amounts

Share based payments Share based payments to employees are measured at the fair va ue of the equity instruments at the grant date The fair values

of equity-settled share-based transactions are determned based on the Current values of the Companys common stock and the restrctions on the

gmnts nciuding futjre service periodc

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on straght line basis over the vesting period

based on the Companys estimate that al grants wIl eventua ly vest At each balance sheet date the Company revises its estimate of the number of

equity instruments expected to vest The impact of the revision of the original estimates if any is recognized in proft or loss over the remaining vestng

period with corresponding adjustment to unearned compensation

Income taxes Income taxes are ca culated using the liability method specifed by SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes SEAS i09 The Company

recognizes deferred tax assets and liablities for both the expected impact of the differences between the financial statement and income tax bases of

assets and liabilties and for the expected future tax benefits to be derived from offsetting the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards against

taxable income if any The Company estab ishes valuation allowance to reflect the likelhood of realization of deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are

reduced if necessary by ye uctiuri allowance noie ike the not that some pornon or of the deferred tax assets wJI not be realized

The Company adopted nancial Accountng Standards Board FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting Uncertainty in Income Taxes an

Interpretation Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 clarifies the financial statement recognition threshold and measurement attr bute of tax

position taken or expected to be taken on tax return in accordance with SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes This interpretaton also provides

guidance on derecognition classfication interest and penalties accounting interim periods dsclosures and transition Under FIN 48 the Company

applies more likely than not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties FIN 48 only allows the recogntion of those tax benefits that have greater

than 50c likelihood of being sustained upon examination by taxing authorites There was no impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or

consolidated results of operations from the adoption of FIN 48

Earnings per share The Company computes earnings per share EPS in accordance with SFAS No 128 Earnings per Share SEAS 128 SEAS 128

requires presentation of both basic and dIuted earnings per share on the taco ot the income statement Basic EPS is computed by diviaing net ncome

loss available to common stockholders numerator by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the per od Diluted EPS

gives effect to all potentially dIutive common shares outstanding during the period Potentially dilutive securities include the ncremental common

shares ssuable upon exercise of the warrants usng the treasury stock method as well as shares of restricted stock because the number of common

shares nto which they are convertible is contingent on the achievement of ten-day average share price exceedng the conversion price or change

control as dscussed in Note For the period ended December 31 2007 approximately 696000 shares of outstanding restricted stock have been

excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS because the ten day average share price did not exceed the conversion prce at any time in the reporting

periods In additon periods of net loss potentially dilutive common shares are exc uded from the computation of dIuted weighted average shares

outstanding as their inclusion would have an ant-di utive effect on net loss per share As result of the net loss for the year ended December 31 2008

all potentia ly di utve securties were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS due to their anti dilutive effect

Operating segments The Company identifies its operating segments on the bass of internal reports about the components of the Company that are

regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to al ocate resources to the segment and to assess ts performance Because of the

similarites in the nature of the services each of the Companys subsidiaries provide the type of customers they serve and the environment which they

operate the Company aggregates the subsidiaries as single operating segment

Accounting estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements conformity with accounting pr nciples generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liablities and disclosure of

contingent assets and iabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reportng periods Actual results could ffer from those estimates

0ecent accounting pronouncements

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SEAS 141 BY and SEAS No 160 Noncontrol/ing Interests in

Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No 51 SEAS 160 SEAS 141R wi change how business

acquisitons are accounted for and SEAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be recharacterzed as

noncontrolling interests and classfied as component of equity SEAS 141R and SEAS 160 are effective for fiscal years beginnng on or after December

15 2008 January 2009 for the Company The adoption of SEAS 141R and SEAS 160 is not expected to have material impact on the Companys

conso dated financial statements



fin thousands except share and per share amounts

March 2008 the EASB ssueo SEAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of EASB Statement No 133

SEAS 161 SEA 1o1 ame ds and expands disclosures about derivative nstruments and hedging acovities SFAS 161 requires qualitatve disc osures

about the objectives and rategies of derivatse instruments quantitative disclosures about the fair value amounts of and gains and losses on derivatve

nstruments and sclosure of credt risk related contingent features in hedging activties SEAS 161 is effectve for fiscal years begnning after November

2008 and evill fe effect ye for tEe Company fiscal year 2009 Ear adoption is prohibited however presentation and disclosure requirements must

be retrospectve applied comparative financial statements The adoption of SEAS 161 is not expected to have material mpact on the Companys

consolidated nancial statements

May 2008 the EASB issu EA No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SEAS 162 SEAS 162 dentifies the sources of

accounting princ pies and the framework for sr ectng the prnciples used in the preparation of fnancial statements for non-governmental entities that

are presented in conformity with accountng principles generally accepted in the United States of America SEAS 162 will be effective 60 days after the

SecuritHs and Exchange Comrnssion approves the Public Company Accountng Oversight Boards amendments to AU Section 411 The Company does

rot anticipate thE adoptior of SEAS 162 will have an impact its consolidated fnancial statements

Eebruary 2008 the EASE ssued EASE Staff Postion No 157 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 FSP No 157-2 to partia ly defer SEAS IS

ISP No 157 deers the efective date of SEAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SEAS 157 for non financal assets and non fnancral liabilties

except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair va ue in the financial statements on recurring basis at east annually to fiscal years ard nterirr

perods within those fsca years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company is currently eva uating the impact of adoptng the provs ons of

No 157

In April 2008 the EASE issu EASB Staff Positcn No 142-3 Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets ESP142-3 This guidance is ntended

mprove the consistercy beween the usefu life of recognized intangble asset and the period of the expected cash flows used to measure the far

\alue of the asset when the underlyng arrangement includes renewal or extension terms that would require substantial costs or result in materia

mod fication to the asset upon renewa or extension Companes estimating the useful life of recognized intangible asset must now consider their

histor ca experience rerewing or extending similar arrangements or in the absence of historical experience must use consider assumpt ons that

market participarts wou se about renewal or extension as ad usted for entty-specific factors ESP 142-3 is effective for the Company beginning

anuary 2009 Jhe adoptor of SP 142-3 is ot expected to have materia impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

NOTE STOCKHOLDERS EQIHTY

he Companys initial capitalization conssted cf 2880000 shares of common stock and 720000 shares of restricted stock col ectively Eounding Stock

ssued rin March 2007

Our ng 200/ the Company raised $120 million before expenses through pr vate placement of units conssting of one share of common stock and

warrant to purchase one share common stock at $4.00 per share Monies raised through the private placement net of costs and working capital were

held in trust account pending stockholder approval of acquisit ons Busness Combinatons and the Company meeting certan other investment

requirements These warrarts expire in June 2011 unless ear let redeemed by the Company The holders of common stock were entitled to require the

Company to repurchase their shares if the Company sought approval for Busness Combinatior and the stockholder voted against the proposal

Because the conditions of rep rchase of these shares of common stock were not sole within the contro of the Company accordance with SEAS 150

Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity the Company classfied the shares of common stock

subject to possble conver ior as temporary equty outside of stockholders equity

In connection with the Wood ano Sovereign acquisitions the Company repurchased 700000 shares at $5.50 per share plus approximately $42 in interest

from stockholders that voted against the acquisition proposa and elected to have their common stock shares repurchased In addition pLirsuant to

requirements in the cern icate of ncorporaton that the Eounding Stock represent no more than 15 2o of the Companys capital stock after such

repurchase the Company cancelled 95360 shares of common stock and 23840 shares of restricted stock owned by holders of Founding Stock

connection with the NIS acquisiton the Company repurchased 2208453 common shares at $5.32 per share plus approximately $270 in interest from

stockholders that voted against the acquisition proposal and elected to have their common stock shares repurchased In addition pursuant to

requirements in tfe cert ficane of incorporation that the Founding Stock represent no more than 15.2% of the Companys capital stock after such

repurchase the Company cancelled 333777 shares of common stock and 83444 shares of restricted stock owned by holders of Founding Stock



thousands except share and per share amounts

With the completon of the Wood Soveregn and NIS acquisitions the Company met the investment requirements related to the units thereby relevng

the Company of any further oh igation to repurchase common stock issued as part of the unts As result the Company reclassifed its common stock

subject to possible convwsior the amount of additional paid in capital Tb remaining funds were releasd from the trust acciint at rhat

time as well

The Company has wholly owned subsidiary Titanium lncentve Plan LLC TIP that owns 306358 shares of the Companys common stock all of which

is Founding Stock was created at the tme of the Companys organization to hold shares of its common stock for one tme awards to the employees

of acquired companies It was not intended as vehicle to provide additional on-going equty compensation to employees As with all other shares of

Founding Stock the shares of common stock held by TIP are held in escrow unti June 21 20t0 Pursuant to indivdual share grant agreements TIP

allocated of its shares to Wood and Sovereign employees around the time of the acquisitons in 2007 The Company acquired TIP on Ju 14 2008 and

amended and restated the terms of these share grant agreements effective as of July 15 2008 to among other things reflect reductions to the indvidual

grant amounts re ated to the cancellation of shares of Founding Stock described above after the consummaton of the Wood Sovereign and NIS

acquis tions Each grantee received non voting membershp interest in TIP At June 21 2010 the grantees non votng membership interest TIP

terminates and the grantee entitled to an in-kind distributon of hs or her allocated shares of common stock The shares are subject to forfeiture in the

event that the grantees emp oyment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries terminated for any reason other than death of the grantee unless

otherwise determined by the board of directors At December 31 2008 no further shares of our common stock held by TIP have been allocated and

97011 shares of our common stock held by TIP were unallocated due to grantee terminatiors and are availab for future grants

In connection with the acquisition of Boyd the Company committed to the awardng of 58000 shares of common stock to certain employees of Boyd of

which 12500 were issued on December 31 2008 These shares of common stock vest based on continuing employment through December 31 2009

Subject to obtaining valuation for such awards the Company has credited pad-in capital $232 based on an estimated $4.00 per share va ue which

wil be charged to expense over the vesting perod

The shares of restricted stock carry voting rights and no rights to dividends except the case of liquidation of the Company The convert on one for

one basis to shares of common stock if at any time wthin five years of ther issue the ten-day average share price of the common stock exceeds $6.90 or

if there is change in control as defined in the Companys certificate of incorporation

In connection with the private placement the Company granted an option to Sunrise Securities Corp to acqure million New Stock units at price of

$6.60 This opton was valued at $2091 usng the Black-Scholes model and was credted to paid in capital

NOTE COMPREHENSWE NCOME LOSS

Comprehensve income loss for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period end from inception February 200710 December 31 2007 are

as fo lows

February

Year ended 2007 to

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Net income loss 7040 443

Unrealized loss net of tax benefit 163

Comprehensive income loss 7203 443



in thousands except share and per share amounts

NOTE ACQUISTIONS

Acquisition of Wood

On October 2007 the Company completed the acquiston o1 of the voting common toc5 of Wod aset managemem firm the equty and

fixed-ncome markets

In consideraton for the sale and purchase of the voting common stock of Wood the sellers received $27500 cash and 727273 shares of common

stock of the Company with fair value of $4000 The sellers may receive addtiona payments should Wood acheve certain revenue and assets under

management milestones during the three-year period after closing At December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment that may be made under

the sale and purchase agreement is $5 000 in cash and common stock

The aggregate purchase prce of Wood was approximately 5331 64 including acquisition costs of $1664 The fol owing summarizes the fair values of the

assets acquired at the date of acqusiton Goodwil recorded from this transaction is tax deductble

Goodwill 19.865

Intangible asset customer relationships 12026

Intangib asset non-compete covenant 829

Intangible asset brand 444

33164

Acquisition of Sovereign

On October 2007 the Company completed the acquisition of all of the membership units of Sovereign an asset management firm in the equty and

fxed income markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the membership units of Sovereign the sellers received $4500 in cash and 181818 shares of commor

stock with fair va ue of $1000 The sellers may also receive up to additional payments should Sovereign achieve certain revenue and assets under

management milestones during the three year period after closing At December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment that may be made under

the sale and purchase agreement is $5000 in cash and common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approxmately $5801 ncluding acquisiton costs of $301 The followng summarizes the fair values of the assets

acquired at the date of acqusition Goodwill recorded from this transaction is tax deductib

Goodwill 2122

Intangible asset customer relationships 2665

Intangible asset non compete covenant 833

Intangible asset brand 181

5801



in thousands except share and per share amounts

Acquisition of MS

On March 31 2008 the Company completed the acqusition of of the outstanding common stock of NO 815 is an asset management firm in the fixed

and eqjity markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the common stock of the sellers received $29684 in cash The sellers wil also receive guaranteed

deferred payments of $645 in 2009 and $1000 in 2010 These guaranteed payments are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as current

obligation and long-term obligation discounted to its net present value of $915 The sellers may so receive additional payments should NIS achieve

certain revenue milestones during 2009 As of December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment that maybe made is approximately $2500 either all

in cash or at the sole discretion of the Company combination of cash and up to 5Q0 common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $32834 including acquistion costs of $1590 The following summarizes the fair values of the assets

acquired at the date of acquistion GoodwIl recorded from this transaction will be tax deductible

Cirrent assets
3123

Property and equipment
130

Goodwill
7091

Intangible asset customer re ationships 23089

Current liabilites
599

32834

Acquisition of Boyd

On December 31 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of all the membership interests of Boyd an asset management frm in the equity and

tixed income markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the membership interests of Boyd the sellers rece ved $7500 in cash whch was paid January 2009 and

192000 shares of common stock valued at $960 based on the closing price of the Companys common stock on December 31 2008 that will be issued

to the sel ers 2011 The purchase price is subject to post closing working capital adjustment and other adjustments The sellers could also receive up

to an additional $8000 purchase price should Boyd meet specific revenue targets as of December 31 2010 The additional deferred payment is payable

65% in cash and 35o in additional shares of common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $8814 ncludng acquistion costs of $354 The following summarizes the estimated fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilites assumed at the date of acquisition The estimated fair values are subject to change pending final analysis of the tota

purchase price and the fair value of the assets acqured and the liabilities assumed Goodwill from this transaction will be tax deductible

Current assets
700

Property and equipment
69

Goodwill 3679

Intangible asset customer relationships
4500

Current liabilities
134

8814



On thousands except share and per share amounts

Pro forma effect of acqustons

The results of operations of Wood and Soveregn have been included in the conso idated results of operations of the Company since October 12007

while the results of operaic of NIB have been included the consolidated results of operations of the Company since April 2008 The results of

operations for Boyd have rot yet been rncluded in the consolidated results of operations of the Company

The unaudited pro forrna information below presents the results of operations as the acquisitions of Wood Sovereign NIB and Boyd had occurred or

the firs day of the per ods presented The unaidited pro forma information is presented for informationa purposes only and is not ntended to represent

or be indicatve of the resu ts of operations of the combined companes had these events occurred at the begnning of the periods presented nor is it

ndicatve of future results Because of the pro forma net losses for each of the periods potentially dIutive securities have been excluded from the

alcu atron of has and di Ed earnngs per share as they would have an antbdilutive effect

February

Year end 2007 to

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Total revenue 23226 27025

Net loss 71 24 363

Net loss per share

Basic 0.35 0.03

Diluted 035 003

Pro forma weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 20598318 12403672

Diluted 20598318 12403672

NOTE GOODWftL AND NTANGBLE ASSETS

The changes in goodwill for tse period from February 2007 to December 31 2007 and for the year ended December 31 2008 are as follows

Wood acqusition 19865

Sovereign acquisition 2122

Goodwr at December 31 2007 21987

acqusiton 7091

Boyd acquisition 3679

Goodwi at December 31 2008 32757

the Company completed its annual evaluation of its farr value and the impact of such on its goodwill balance as of December 31 2008 The assessment

of fa value was principa based on discounted cash flow analysis of projected cash flows In preparing the cash flow projections the Company

consdered the impact tha the significant decreases in the equty markets over the last half of 2008 and the loss of customer accounts over the first half

of 2008 had on the Compa ys assets under management and the resultrng impact on projected fee revenue over the next several years As resu of

he farr value assessment the Company concluded that the value of its goodwill was recoverable



thousands except share and per share amounts

The changes in intangibles assets for the perod from February 2007 to December31 2007 and for the year ended December 31 2008 were as follows

Wood acquisition
13299

Sovereign acqusition
3679

Amortization expense
809

Impairment
829

Intangib assets at December31 2007 15340

NIS acqusition
23089

Boyd acquisition
4500

Amortization expense
4190

Impairment
6533

Intangible assets at December 31 2008 32206

One of the prncipals from Wood with whom the Company had nomcompete agreement passed away in 2007 As result the Company wrote

off the remaining $829 balance re ated to that intangb asset

As result of the principals death in 2007 Wood lost severa accounts pnmarily in the second quarter of 2008 The Company determined that the

loss of these accounts impaired the original value of the Wood customer relationships and recorded an impairment charge of $1478 in the second

quarter of 2008

In the second quarter of 2008 Sovereign ost an institutional account that represented approximately 1900 of the assets under management at the

time of the Sovereign acquisition As resu the Company determined that the loss had impaired the orignal value of the Sovereign customer

relatonships ad recorded an mpairmet charge 0f $314 the cecnnd qJarter 2nne

As result of the signficant equity market decreases over the second half of 2008 the Company reassessed the recoverability of the customer

relationship intangible assets acquired the Wood Sovereign and NIS acqusitons at December 31 2008 The Company determined that the

Wood customer relationshp asset had been further impaired and recognized $4540 impairment charge The Company also determined that the

Sovereign customer relationsh asset had been further mpaired and recognized $201 mpairment charge The Company determined the

carrying amount of the NIS client referral relationship was still recoverab

Identifiable intangble assets net of amortization at December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

December 31 2008 December 312007

Accumuated AccumWated

Cost Amortizaton Net Cost Amortzaton Net

Wood customer relationships 12026 8850 3176 12026 601 11425

Wood brand 444 139 305 444 28 416

Sovereign customer relationships 2665 966 1699 2665 95 2570

Sovereign nomcompete agreement 833 347 486 833 70 763

Sovereign brand 181 76 105 181 15 166

NIS client referra relationship
23089 1154 21935

Boyd customer relationships 4500 4500

Totals 43738 11532 32206 16149 809 15340

The Company has reassessed the remaining useful lives of these assets in connecton with the recoverability assessments Amortization is based on the

following estimated remaining useful Ives Wood intangible assets years Sovereign intangible assets years NIS client referral relationship

asset 14 years and Boyd customer relationships asset 15 years



fin thousands except share and per share amounts

the estimated annual amor eaton expense for each of the next fve years is as follows

Year

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

NOTE NCOME TAXES

Signifcant components of ncome tax expense benefit are as follows

Amount

3691

3691

3664

2436

1879

464 545

464 657

3055 313

64

3823 377

4287 280

Current

Federal

State

Deferred

Federa

State

Year Ended

December 31

2008

February

2007 to

December 31

2007

768

Income tax expense bet ef it



in thousands except share and per share amounts

The following is reconciliation between the expected income tax expense benefit using the federa statutory tax rate 34% and the income tax

expense benefit

February

Year Ended 2007 to

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Income tax expense benefit at federal statutory rate 3851 246

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 507

Other
71

Income tax expense beneft 4287 280

The Companys deferred tax assets and liabi1ities relate to the following remprary differpncc between financal accounting and tax bases as follows

December 31

2007

Net operating loss carryforwards 1329

Goodwill and intangib assets

Total deferred tax asset 4202

At December 31 2008 the Company had federal net operatng loss carryforward of approxmately 23126 that expires in 2023 and state net operating

loss carryfowads tota5ng approxmaty S4620 that expire 2022 and 202

No valuation allowance was establshed because in managements opinion it more likely
than not the deferred asset will be realized

NOTE COMMTMENTS

Operating leases The Company leases certain corporate offices office equipment and computer software under lease agreements with terms up to five

years with options to renew for additional periods and requirements for the Company to pay property taxes insurance and mantenance Rent expense

was 2900 and $82 for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from February 22007 to December 31 2007 respectively The fo lowing

schedule by year of the future minimum lease payments due under agreements with terms extending beyond one year

Amount

2009
878

2010
750

2011
289

2012
252

2013
198

Thereafter
880

Retirement plans The Company through each of its subsidiaries sponsors defined contribution ens covering substantially all employees The

Company contributed approximate $66 and $9 in matching funds for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the perod February 2007 to

December 31 2007 respectively The NO plan also provides profit sharing component whereby NIS can make discretionary contribution to the pan

that is allocated based on the compensation of eligible employees The discretionary contributon for 2008 was $272

Other

December 31

2008

2779 378

94

377



thousands except share and per share amounts

NOTE UNE OF CREDT

The Company through NIS has $950 line of credit with financal institution secured by general business lien The line of credit is payable upon

Jemand and bears interest at 3.25o No amounts were outstanding under the line of credt at December 31 2008

NOTE 10 FAR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fffective January 2008 the Company adopted SEAS 157 which estabi shes requirements regarding the disclosure of fair value information SEAS 157

requires fair va ues to be disclosed based on three levels of nput Level quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level

observable inputs other than evel prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabi ities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other

inputs that are observable or can be corrobora ed by observable market data for substantia ly the fu term of the assets or liabilities or Level

Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the far value of assets or iabilities Level assets and

iab lit es inc ude financal istruments the value of which is determined using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar

techn ques as well as instrumen for which the determination of fair value requires signficant judgment or estimation

The assets that the Compary iN continue to measure at fair values on recurrng basis consisted of the followino at December 31 7008

Category used for Fak Vaues

Lev Levee Leve

Assets

Cash and cash equ valents 18753

Current wcurites avalable for sac

orporate bonds 10683

Noncurrent securities availab for salc

Commingled stock fund 672

30108

ash and cash equivalents prirnari consist of money market funds and their cost approxmates fair value The Companys investments in corporate

bonds relate to investments made primarily to increase the Companys average interest yield At December 31 2008 the unrea ized gain on corporate

bonds was approximately $32 The Companys investment in commingled stock fund relates to its investment in the Plurima Titanium U.S Stock Fund

sub-fund of the Dubin based Plur ma Funds mutual fund complex to which the Company serves as an investment advisor The fund was initiated Ju

2008 Al December 31 2008 the unrealized loss in the fund was approximately $294 which reflects the losses in the underlying values of the equity

securities in which the fund invests caused primarily by the decreases in the equity markets over the last half of 2008 Based on the Companys ability

and ntent to hold this inve tment for reasonable period of tme sufficient for recovery of fair value the Company did not consider ths investment to

he other than temporarily impaired at December 31 2008

NOTE 11 MAJOR CUSTOMER

HIS has an Investment Sub Advisory Agreement with Attalus Capital L.L Attalus under which NIS is engaged to assist Attalus with Taft Hart ey

oension plar assets by referring investors and providing advice on potental investment issues support in preparing marketing and reporting materials

and to assist in marketing presentations In consideration of these services NIS receives specifed percent per annum of fees receved by Atta us for

clients referred to Attalus by NIS as defined by the agreement The fee is paid quarterly arrears The fees under this arrangement were $1799 for 2008

The referral arrangement has term through December 2009 unless earlier terminated and is subject to renewal
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NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES

During the course of an internal investgation management of NIS found evidence suggesting that certain of its customers plan assets were invested in

manner inconsistent wth the plans authorized investment policy Management is currently the dscovery stages of its investigation and is assessing

the potentia impact to the Company and NISs level of responsEbility NIS voluntarily settled with one of its affected customers in the amount of $60

which was included in other current liabilities at December 31 2008 and paid in January 2009 Due to the uncertainties nvolved the Company is unable

to reasonably estimate the amount or range of amounts of possible additional losses associated with the resolution of this matter beyond what has

been recorded While management cannot estimate the amount or range of amounts of potential losses if any the maximum exposure regardless of the

outcome would be limited to NISs professional liability and drectors and offcers liab lity
insurance policy deductible which is $500

During 2008 the Company received an nvoice for $670 from the lawyers who worked on the placement of the Companys shares of common stock on

AIM in June 2007 The Company in dispute with the lawyers with respect to this invoice and at the current tme believes there is no liabilty

Accordingly no provison has been made in these consolidated financial statements for the invoice In the event that liability does arise the

consolidated ncome statement wil be unaffected and the Company does not expect its consolidated financial position to materially change

The Company is from time to time involved in legal matters incdental to the conduct of its business and such matters can nvolve current and former

employees and vendors Management does not expect these matters would have material effect on the Companys consolidated financia positon or

results of operations

NOTE 13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of basic and diluted liPS is as follows

Period from

February

Year Ended 2007 to

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Basic EPS

Net income loss 7040 443

Weighted average shares outstanding 20406318 11529853

Basic EPS 0.34 0.04

Diluted EPS

Net ncome loss 7040 443

Weighted average common shares outstanding 20406318 11529853

Dilutve warrants 31 77723

DIuted weighted average shares outstandng 20406318 14707576

Diluted EPS 034 0.03

Because of the net osses for the year ended December 31 2008 potentia ly di ut ye securities have been excluded from the ca culation of basic and

diluted BPS as they would have an anti dilutive effect
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including particularly the Management Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 which provides safe harborfor statements about future events

products and future financial performance that are based on the beliefs of estimates made by and information

currently available to the management of Titanium Asset Management Corp Delaware corporation referred to

as we our or the Company and unless the context indicates otherwise includes our wholly owned asset

management subsidiaries Wood Asset Management Inc or Wood Sovereign Holdings LLC or Sovereign

National Investment Services Inc or NIS and Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC or Boyd We refer to

Wood Sovereign NIS and Boyd collectively as our subsidiaries The outcome of the events described in these

forward-looking statements is subject to risks and uncertainties Actual results and the outcome or timing of certain

events may djffer signfl cantly from those projected in these forward-looking statements due to market fluctuations

that alter our assets under management termination of investment advisory agreements loss of key personnel loss

of third-party disfribution services impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets our inability to compete

market pressure on investment advisory fees problems experienced in the acquisition or integration of target

businesses changes in law regulation or tax rates ineffective management of risk inadequacy of insurance

changes in interest rates equity prices liquidity of global markets and international and regional political

conditions terrorism changes in monetary andfiscal policy investor sentiment and availability and cost of capital

technological changes and events outcome of legal proceedings changes in currency values inflation and credit

ratings failure of our systems to properly operate or actions taken by Clal Finance Ltd or Clal as our sign Ulcant

stockholder and other factors listed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and from time to time in our other filings

with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commission For this purpose statements relating to

integrating the operational administrative and sales activities of our subsidiaries earning of incentive fees amount

of future assets under management acquisitions of additional asset management firms and payment therefor

payment of deferred consideration for the purchase of our subsidiaries and anticipated levels offuture revenues

expenses or earnings among other things any statements using the terms aim anticip ate appear based

on believe can continue could are emerging estimate expect expectation intend

may ongoing plan possible potential predict project should and would or similar words

or phrases or the negatives of those words or phrases or discussions of strategy plans objectives or goals may

identi5 forward-looking statements that involve risks uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual

results financial condition and the outcome and timing of certain events to d4ffer materially from those projected or

managements current expectations By making forward-looking statements we have not assumed any obligation

to and you should not expect us to update or revise those statements because of new information future events or

otherwise

PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Company Background

We were incorporated in Delaware on February 2007 operating as special purpose acquisition

company Our objective was to acquire one or more operating companies engaged in asset management

On June 21 2007 we completed $120000000 private placement of units consisting of one share of our

common stock par
value $0.0001 per share or Common Stock and one warrant to purchase one share of Common

Stock at $4.00 per share or Warrant Clal publicly traded financial institution in Israel became the holder of

approximately 44.1% of our Common Stock 42.8% of our voting stock at that time as result of the private

placement Clal subsequently acquired more than majority of our Common Stock 49.8% of our voting stock on

May 2008 when it purchased additional outstanding shares of Common Stock from another stockholder

The Conmion Stock and the Warrants were also admitted to trading on AIM market operated by the

London Stock Exchange on June 21 2007 Each company admitted to listing on AIM is required to have

Nominated Advisor or Nomad who is responsible for among other things advising the company on its

responsibilities under the AIM rules for companies Seymour Pierce Limited serves as our Nomad



As described more fully below we used substantial portion of the proceeds of the private placement to

acquire four asset management firms and became an operating company At December 31 2008 through these

subsidiaries we had approximately $7.6 billion of assets under management For managing these assets our

subsidiaries receive investment advisory fees calculated as percentage or range of percentages of the market

value of the assets under management Such fees constitute the preponderance of our consolidated revenues

The Acquisitions

The WoodAgreement

We purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of Wood on October 2007 pursuant to an acquisition

agreement with Wood and its stockholders dated September 2007 or the Wood Agreement The total initial

purchase price for the outstanding capital stock of Wood was $27500000 in cash and 727273 shares of our

Common Stock valued at $4000000

As of December 31 2008 the Wood Agreement calls for up to three additional payments totaling

$5000000 to be paid to Gary Woods estate if certain performance criteria are met Specifically the Wood

Agreement calls for payment of up to $2000000 payable by November 23 2009 if the assets under management

of Wood exceed $1.5 billion on September 30 2009 In addition the Wood Agreement calls for payment of up to

$2000000 payable on November 22 2011 if the assets under management of Wood exceed $1.5 billion on

September 30 2011 Each of these payments would be prorated if the assets under management of Wood are less

than $1.5 billion At December 31 2008 the assets under management of Wood were $0.7 billion At our option

up to 50% of each of these payments may be paid in shares of our Common Stock valued on the day preceding each

payment The Wood Agreement also provides revenue bonus of $1000000 payable by February 24 2011 if the

net advisory fee revenue of Wood for the year ending December 31 2010 exceeds $12500000 For the year ended

December 31 2008 the net advisory fee revenue of Wood was $4149000

The Sovereign Agreement

We also purchased all of the outstanding membership interests of Sovereign on October 2007 pursuant to

an acquisition agreement dated September 2007 with Sovereign its sole member JARE Inc or JARE and the

owners of JARE or the Sovereign Agreement The total initial purchase price for the outstanding membership

interests of Sovereign was $4500000 in cash and 181818 shares of our Common Stock valued at $1000000

As of December 31 2008 the Sovereign Agreement calls for up to four additional payments totaling

$5000000 to be paid to JARE if certain performance criteria are met Specifically the Sovereign Agreement calls

for payment of up to $1500000 payable by November 23 2009 if the assets under management of Sovereign

exceed $1.9 billion on September 30 2009 In addition the Sovereign Agreement calls for payment of up to

$1500000 payable on November 22 2011 if the assets under management of Sovereign exceed $1.9 billion on

September 30 2011 Each of these payments would be prorated if the assets under management of Sovereign are

less than $1.9 billion At December 31 2008 the assets under management of Sovereign were $1.2 billion At our

option up to 50% of each of these payments may be paid in shares of our Common Stock valued on the day

preceding each payment The Sovereign Agreement also provides revenue bonus of $1000000 payable by

November 20 2009 if the net advisory fee revenue of Sovereign for the twelve months ending September 30 2009

exceeds $5000000 In addition the Sovereign Agreement provides revenue bonus of $1000000 payable by

November 20 2010 if the net advisory fee revenue of Sovereign for the twelve months ending September 30 2010

exceeds $6500000 For the year ended December 31 2008 the net advisory fee revenue of Sovereign was

$2687000

The NIS Agreement

On March 31 2008 we purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of MS pursuant to an acquisition

agreement dated February 28 2009 with NIS MS Holdings Inc and the stockholders of MS Holdings Inc or the

NIS Agreement The initial purchase price for all of the outstanding capital stock of MS was approximately

$29684000 in cash subject to closing equity adjustment and two deferred payments of $1000000 due



March 31 2009 and March 31 2010 The closing equity adjustment resulted in $355000 reduction in the

purchase price that is being offset against the payment due March 31 2009

In addition as of December 31 2008 the NILS Agreement provides for an additional payment of up to

approximately $2500000 if certain revenue criteria are met The amount of the additional payment is based on

NISs revenue for the year ending December 31 2009 The additional payment is $2000000 if revenues are

$12000000 and is reduced to zero on pro rata basis if revenues do not exceed $11000000 and is increased to

maximum of $2166667 on pro
rata basis if revenues are between $12000000 and $13000000 These amounts

are further adjusted by an amount equal to 50% of the calculated net value of the income tax benefits to be received

by us from the payment For the year ended December 31 2008 the total revenue of NIS was $10493000 At our

option up to 50% of this payment may be paid in shares of our Common Stock valued at the average price per

share of Common Stock over 30-day trading period preceding the payment date

The BoydAgreement

On December 31 2008 we purchased all of the outstanding membership interests in Boyd pursuant to

purchase agreement dated November 2008 with BWAM Holdings LLC Boyd and the common members and

for limited purposes the preferred members of BWAM Holdings LLC or the Boyd Agreement The total initial

purchase price for the outstanding membership interests of Boyd was $7500000 in cash which was paid January

2009 and 192000 shares of our Common Stock valued at $960000 based on the closing price of the Companys

Common Stock on December 31 2008 that will be issued to the sellers in 2011 The purchase price is subject to

post-closing adjustment for working capital

The Boyd Agreement calls for an additional payment based on Boyds revenue run rate as defined in the

Boyd Agreement as of December 31 2010 The payment amount ranges from an additional $1000000 at

revenue run rate of $6250001 up to maximum amount of $8000000 at revenue run rate in excess of

$8000000 This additional payment will be paid 65% in cash and 35% in shares of our Common Stock valued at

the average price per share of Common Stock over 30-day trading period preceding the payment date At

December 31 2008 the revenue run rate for Boyd was approximately $5600000

Our Subsidiaries

Our goal in making these acquisitions was to assemble group of asset managers with solid long-term track

records that also had differing specialties and diverse types and sources of clients The intended outcome was to

create core asset management business that offered expertise in both equity and fixed-income securities and had

client base that extended from individuals to range of institutional investors as well as solid sub-advisory and

referral arrangements with variety of broker-dealers

Wood located in Sarasota Florida was founded by Gary Wood in 1994 Woods portfolio management

activities have primarily focused on providing investment strategies for equity securities particularly the equity

securities of U.S issuers with large market capitalizations Its client base is primarily comprised of individual

investors including high net worth investors and it primarily relies on broker-dealer agreements both sub-advisory

and referral as source of clients

Sovereign located in Charlotte North Carolina traces its operations back to 1987 when InterState Johnson

Lane broker-dealer and New York Stock Exchange member firm created an investment advisory unit Sovereign

Advisers Sovereigns portfolio management activities have primarily focused on providing investment strategies

for fixed-income securities particularly investment-grade debt of U.S issuers It has diversified client base of

individual and institutional investors and primarily relies on sub-advisory agreements with broker-dealers as

source of its clients

NTS headquartered in Milwaukee Wisconsin was incorporated by among others Robert Kelly and Robert

Siefert in 1993 Similar to Sovereign MS is best-known for providing investment strategies for fixed-income

securities However its client base is substantially comprised of institutional investors mainly Taft-Hartley plans



i.e union sponsored pension plans and health and welfare plans and it does not rely on arrangements with

broker-dealers as source of clients

Boyd located in Cleveland Ohio was founded in 1928 Boyds portfolio management services have

primarily focused on fixed-income equity and customized products Its client base is comprised of institutional

investors with an emphasis on state and municipal entities and individual investors including high net worth

investors Boyd relies on sub-advisory arrangements with broker-dealers as source of its clients

Although we believe the acquisitions of Wood Sovereign MS and Boyd substantially create the core asset

management business that was our initial goal we intend to further expand our asset management business either

through the acquisition of specialist asset management firms that will expand the investment strategies we can offer

or more broadly oriented firms that will add to the general level of assets being managed under equity and

fixed-income strategies similar to those currently in place We may also expand our assets under management by

obtaining the assignment of management agreements with mutual funds

We expect to fund such acquisitions partly from the cash balances that remain from our private placement

of units and partly through issuance of additional shares of our Common Stock including through the conversion of

our outstanding Warrants although we may incur bank debt as well

Our goal in the short term is to obtain economies of scale by integrating the operational administrative and

sales activities of the subsidiaries and any future acquisitions including accounting information technology

human resources and risk management Over the longer term we expect to consolidate the various operations into

one asset management business operating in multiple locations

Principal Products and Services

Our Investment Strategies

Our current range of investment strategies is set forth in the table below

Wood Sovereign MS Boyd

U.S Relative Value Enhanced Cash Fixed Income Short Duration Fixed Income Short-Term Fixed Income

Equity Limited Duration Fixed Income Intermediate Fixed Income High Quality Intermediate

U.S Core Equity Intermediate Taxable Fixed Intermediate Plus Fixed Income Fixed Income

Balanced Income Intermediate Aggregate Fixed Intermediate Fixed Income

Quantitative Strategies Intermediate Municipal Fixed Income High Quality Core Fixed

Income Aggregate Core Fixed Income Income

Core Fixed Income Aggregate Core Plus Fixed Income Total Return Core Fixed

Total Return Fixed Income Fixed Income Arbitrage Fund Income

Diversified Fixed Income Preferred Stock Funds Disciplined Core Fixed

Strategy Immunized/Liability Matching Income

Managed Fixed Income Fixed Income Ultra Enhanced Core Fixed

Solution Fixed Income Transition Income

Management U.S Equities

Multi-Strategy Fund Balanced

Long-Short Equity Fund International Equities

All Cap International Growth

Equity

Woods U.S Relative Value Equity and U.S Core Equity strategies are based on combination of

internally generated research and third-party analysis largely provided by broker-dealers the investment process

uses both top down macroeconomic analysis and bottom up company research The U.S Relative Value Equity

strategy is benchmarked against the Russell 1000 Value Index and the U.S Core Equity Strategy against the SP
500 Index Woods Quantitative Strategies is based upon internally conducted quantitative research that seeks to

forecast relative returns from different markets and from investment styles for example value versus growth All

accounts implementing the Quantitative Strategies are currently benchmarked against the Russell 3000 Index



Both the Sovereign and MS range
of strategies have been developed to provide accounts with different

maturities and qualities of credit within the fixed-income markets as well as taxable and non-taxable securities

Each of Sovereign and NIS use both intemal and third-party research in their investment processes
There are some

differences in their approaches to constructing portfolios For example Sovereign will actively manage the average

maturity duration of client holdings in certain of its strategies while NIS uses little duration management MS

uses dedicated high-yield component sub-advised by Stone Harbor Investment Partners or Stone Harbor as

discussed below within its Aggregate Core Plus Fixed Income strategy

Sovereign and NIS use range of benchmarks reflecting the characteristics of each strategy For example

the MS Aggregate Core Fixed Income and Aggregate Core Plus Fixed Income strategies are measured against the

Barclays Aggregate Index

Boyd has developed number of fixed-income strategies for its clients These strategies are designed to

offer clients the opportunity to tailor their specific risk and return preferences to Boyd product offerings In general

Boyd offers strategies that center around core mandates that are benchmarked to the Barclays Aggregate Bond

Index intermediate mandates that center on the Barclays Intermediate Government and Credit Index and shorter

term mandates with custom benchmarks

Portfolios are managed to models and risk management procedures are implemented to detect variances

between portfolios Additionally portfolios are tested against numerous market scenarios

The benchmarks chosen are those that our subsidiaries believe best reflect the characteristics of each

investment strategy They are also typically the benchmarks most familiar to our clients or to the consultants or

advisors to our clients For example the Russell 1000 Value Index is the benchmark commonly used by clients

when selecting manager for large cap value strategy such as that offered by Wood

Unlike vehiclessuch as mutual fundsin which clients assets are pooled each subsidiary generally

manages its client accounts on an individualized basis Portfolios within the same investment strategy may differ

with regard to specific holdings but maintain similar goals and objectives In addition restrictions and other

guidelines that clients may place on their accounts will result in differences in the securities held in similar accounts

Therefore accounts with similar strategies will not perform identically

NTS however offers membership interests in five limited liability companies to which it acts as the

managing member and shares in one Cayman Islands exempted company to which it is the investment advisor

These portfolios include high-yield
fixed-income corporate securities U.S government corporate and

mortgage-backed securities and U.S corporate preferred stocks and preferred-like income securities MS has

sub-advisory agreement with Stone Harbor under which Stone Harbor manages the high-yield fixed-income

corporate securities component of MSs Aggregate Core Plus Fixed Income strategy

MS has also entered into sub-advisory agreement with Masthoim Asset Management LLC or Masthoim

under which Masthoim is to provide sub-advisory services to an international equity growth fund which MS will

launch NIS also has separate sub-advisory agreement with Masthoim for management of segregated client

accounts To date no funds have yet been raised under the former agreement nor clients acquired under the latter

agreement

Other Investment Strategies

NIS has referral arrangement with Attalus Capital or Attalus whereby MS refers investors to investment

vehicles sponsored by Attalus and in turn receives referral fee equal to percentage
of the fees received by Attalus

from the new clients In 2008 fees generated from the referral arrangement with Attalus represented $1799000 or

approximately 12% of our total consolidated revenue The referral arrangement has term of three years from

December 2006 unless earlier terminated for breach of any representation warranty or covenant contained

therein and is subject to renewal If the referral agreement is not renewed MS remains entitled to its compensation

for so long as each referred client remains client of Attalus



On April 28 2008 the Irish Financial Regulatory Authority approved the launch of the Plurima Titanium

U.S Equity Fund sub-fund of the Dublin-based Plurima Funds mutual funds complex to which Wood has served

as investment advisor from the date of its launch on July 2008 In March 2009 we determined that additional

investments from other parties into the Plurima Titanium U.S Equity Fund were likely not to be forthcoming As

result our board decided to commence actions to liquidate our investment in the commingled stock fund

Our Clients

Our subsidiaries combined assets under management at December 31 2008 were approximately $7.6

billion which consisted of $0.7 billion for 1112 clients under Woods management $1.2 billion for 945 clients

under Sovereigns management $2.9 billion for 113 clients under NISs management and $2.9 billion for 945

clients under Boyds management

Our percentage of assets under management and number of clients by type of client for each subsidiary as

of December 31 2008 are set forth in the table below

Percentage of

Total

Number of

Clients

NIS

Percentage

of Total Percentage of

Number of Assets Under

Clients Management

Less than 1.0%

Prior to our acquisition of NIS it offered Woods U.S Relative Value Equity product to its clients through

sub-advisory relationship In this table those assets are attributed to Wood

Wood

Percentage

of Total

Number of

Clients

Sovereign

Percentage of

Assets Under

ManagementClient Type

Individuals other

than high net-

worth

individuals

High net-worth

individuals

Banking and

thrift

Percentage of

Assets Under

Management

Boyd

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Assets

Number of Under

Clients Management

55 27 62 17 67

31 18 22 38 11

institutions

Pension and

profit sharing

plans other

than plan

participations 31 51 57 13

Other pooled

investment

vehicles e.g
hedge funds

Charitable

organizations 12 17

Corporations or

other

businesses not

listed above 34 12 23

State or

municipal

government

entities 14 40

Taft-Hartley

health and

welfare plans 32 24



Our asset management services are typically delivered pursuant to investment advisory agreements entered

into between each subsidiary and its clients The nature of these agreements the notice periods and the billing

cycles vary depending on the nature and the source of each client relationship

In the case of Wood the investment advisory agreement for each separately managed client provides for

continuous services but the agreement may be terminated by either Wood or the client at any time on written notice

Fees are calculated as percentage or range of percentages of the market value of assets under management and

are paid at the beginning of each quarter based on the value of the cash and securities under management at the end

of the preceding quarter

Wood also provides asset management services in conjunction with other investment advisors or with

broker-dealers Wood participates in number of wrap programs sponsored by broker-dealers Wrap programs

generally permit investors whose accounts otherwise would not have sufficient assets to warrant separate account

managed by an investment advisor to obtain specialized treatment The client enters into an investment advisory

agreement with the broker-dealer sponsor who collects the fee the sponsor then enters into sub-advisory

agreements with range of specialist investment advisors to manage the assets and to which it pays part of the fee

In the case of Wood the three largest wrap sub-advisory agreements shown in the table below can all be

terminated with 30 days notice and pay fees quarterly in advance

In addition to wrap programs Wood also has number of dual contract relationships with broker-dealers

under which clients execute an agreement with Wood for investment advisory services while simultaneously

executing an agreement with the broker-dealer for custody execution and client relationship services While the

practical operation of these accounts is similar to wrap program dual contract relationship means that Wood

collects fee directly from the client and as with separately managed client accounts the investment advisory

agreement may be terminated by Wood or the client at any time on written notice Wood manages additional

institutional clients under sub-advisory contract with MS There is also further institutional investment advisory

agreement to which both Wood and MS are parties Fees on these agreements are collected paid quarterly in

arrears The notice periods for these agreements vary from immediate notice to 30 days and are required to be in

writing For the purposes of the table above each client in wrap program under dual contract or sub-advised on

behalf of NIS is counted as one client

final type of relationship is one under which Wood provides model portfolio to broker-dealer but is

not responsible for managing underlying individual accounts Wood has two such relationships and is paid fee

quarterly in advance based upon the assets that the broker-dealer manages using the model portfolio The notice

period is between seven and 30 days and notices are required to be in writing For the purpose of the table above

these are treated as two clients

Wood earned investment advisory fees of $4149000 in 2008 and $6511000 in 2007 of which $1102000

in 2008 and $1781000 in 2007 was attributable to sub-advisory agreements under wrap programs

In the case of Sovereign the investment advisory agreements with each separately managed client

generally provides for termination by either Sovereign or the client on 30 days written notice Fees are calculated

as percentage or range of percentages of the market value of assets under management and are generally paid at

the beginning of each quarter based on the value of the cash and securities under management at the end of the

preceding quarter although few clients pay fees in arrears Sovereign has both single contract wrap relationships

with number of broker-dealer sponsors as well as dual contract relationships with clients and broker-dealers The

major broker-dealer relationships are set out in the table below Fees for both types of relationships are typically

collected quarterly in advance and notice periods are typically 30 days

Sovereign earned investment advisory fees of $2687000 in 2008 and $3615000 in 2007 of which

$1367000 in 2008 and $2182000 in 2007 was attributable to sub-advisory fees under wrap programs

In the case of NIS the investment advisory agreement with each client provides for initial services for

one-year period and quarterly services thereafter The investment advisory agreement may be terminated after the

one-year period by either MS or the client on 30 days written notice Fees are calculated as percentage or range

of percentages of the market value of assets under management and are paid at the end of each quarter based on the



value of the cash and securities under management at the end of that quarter NIS earned investment advisory fees

of $7537000 in 2008 and $7876000 in 2007 It paid $129000 to its sub-advisors in 2008 and $182000 in 2007

such sub-advisor payments exclude payments to Wood

Also NIS may earn incentive fees from the limited liability companies to which it is the managing member

and Cayman Island exempted company to which it acts as investment advisor Incentive fee arrangements

generally entitle MS to participate on fixed-percentage basis in the net profits earned by these managed

companies NISs participation percentage is multiplied by the net profits earned to determine the amount of the

incentive fee If losses are incurred the losses are netted against net profits before MS is eligible to participate in

any incentive fees Incentive fees if any are calculated and paid on an annual basis MS earned $518000 of such

fees in 2008

In the case of Boyd the investment advisory agreements for each separately managed client provide for

continuous services but the agreement may be terminated by either Boyd or the client at any time on written notice

Fees are calculated as percentage or range of percentages of the market value of the assets under management

Typically although not always fees are charged on quarterly basis and vary as to whether they are paid in advance

or in arrears based on the particular agreement

Boyd has been retained as sub-advisor on several wrap programs sponsored by broker-dealers under

similar arrangements as those with Wood and Sovereign Boyd has both single contract wrap relationships with

number of broker-dealer sponsors as well as dual contract relationships with clients and broker-dealers The major

broker-dealer relationships are set out in the table below Fees for both types of relationships are typically collected

quarterly in advance and notice periods are typically 30 days

Boyd earned investment advisory fees of $5898000 in 2008 of which $938000 was attributable to sub-

advisory agreements under wrap programs

In general the percentages paid as fees based on assets under management are higher for equity investment

strategies than for fixed-income strategies

Distribution and Marketing

Broker-Dealer Relationships

As described above under Our Clients Wood Sovereign and Boyd have number of important

relationships with broker-dealers The material relationships as of December 31 2008 under which each of Wood

Sovereign and Boyd derived revenues are set forth in the table below

WOOD SOVEREIGN BOYD

Wrap Programs Wrap Programs Wrap Programs

RBC Dam Raucher Raymond James Financial Services EdwardL Jones Co

Raymond James Financial Services Inc Morgan Stanley and Co
Inc Lockwood Advisors Inc Incorporated

Envestnet Asset Management Inc UVEST Investment Services Group Advisor Port Inc

Optimum Investment Advisors Inc Fund Quest Incorporated

NBC Securities First Global Advisors Inc

ARIS Corporation of America

Stifel Nicholas Company

Incorporated

Mid Atlantic Financial Management

Inc

Envestnet Asset Management Inc



WOOD SOVEREIGN BOYD

Dual Contracts Dual Contracts Dual Contracts

Morgan Keegan American Securities Group Inc Merrill Lynch Co

Wachovia Essex Financial Services Inc UBS Financial Services Inc

AXA Equitable RW Baird Co

Charles Schwab

Wealth Trust Advisors Inc

Model Portfolios

Placemark

Envestnet Asset Management Inc

significant part of our marketing effort is devoted to maintaining these various broker-dealer

relationships Such firms typically have investment specialists reviewing the merits of current or prospective

investment advisors strategies as well as regional or national sales teams taking these strategies to their clients

Our own senior investment professionals maintain close contact with the investment specialists while our sales

executives make frequent calls on the generally widely dispersed sales teams at these firms

Institutional Distribution

Our institutional clients and institutional distribution are focused largely at NIS and Boyd Institutional

investors typically use multiple investment strategies in building their portfolios and rely heavily on advice from

investment consultants Our business strategy is to have through acquisition or intemal development several

different investment strategies in order to have multiple opportunities to obtain additional assets under management

from existing or prospective clients At the same time we work extensively with investment consultants in

particular by providing them with timely information about our investment strategies and responding to their

requests for proposals Our current focus is on firms with regional presence
and that service our existing clients or

prospects Consulting firms to whom we regularly provide data include the following

Investment Performance Services

Lowery Asset Consulting

Marco Consulting Group

Marquette Association

New England Pension Consultants

CapTrust Advisors/Schott Group

Segal Advisors

Strategic Capital Investment Advisors

We expect to increase our marketing efforts to consultants by providing information to and calling on

more firms including firms with national coverage

In addition we may on occasion engage third-party solicitors to market our products to institutional

clients

Referral Arrangements

Each of our subsidiaries has arrangements in place with other entities including broker-dealers under

which they each pay solicitation fees for client referrals Such fees are an expense to the applicable subsidiary and

do not increase the charges to the clients In particular Wood receives referrals from Charles Schwab Co Inc

or Schwab through Woods participation in Schwab Advisor Network.TM
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Competitive Business Conditions

The U.S Economy

In line with most market commentators we believe that the dislocation in U.S financial markets will cause

the current recession in the U.S economy to extend to late 2009 or early 2010 Recent actions by the U.S Treasury

and Federal Reserve have improved the prospect for some recovery in 2010 Similar comments apply to economies

in other developed countries for example in European countries Rates of economic growth will remain positive in

certain developing economies for example China and India

The effect of these factors on business conditions in the asset management industry will we believe be

quite complex The flow of funds into long-term savings vehicles such as pension funds should in the short term

be unchanged oniy significant rise in unemployment would impact such flows in the medium term We expect

that long-term investors such as pension funds foundations and endowments will continue to diversify their

portfolios through an increased use of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds real estate and private equity

We also expect institutional investors to continue to diversify into international markets Although we believe that

we are well positioned to benefit from these trends we will continue to add new strategies to meet investors needs

The outlook for individual investors including high net worth investors is less certain In the U.S mutual

funds market to which we currently do not have any exposure there has been significant shift in asset allocation

from equity-based funds to money market funds which pay lower investment advisory fees For separately

managed accounts we believe that there are conflicting influences The current economic uncertainties may lead to

an increase in the savings rate However low nominal and real interest rates may deter bond investors while recent

market volatility may also lead equity investors to increase their allocation to cash at least in the short term

Our Competitive Position in the Industry

The asset management industry in the U.S is highly fragmented with several thousand asset managers

Although there are few large firms those with $1 trillion and above in assets under management these firms tend

to have significant assets in index-tracking strategies and/or money market funds Both of these strategies are

typically highly scaleable and pay lower investment advisory fees than actively managed equity and fixed-income

strategies For these reasons larger firms have attempted further growth by continuous product innovation

Because barriers to entry in asset management are reasonably low however larger firms have for some time

suffered an outflow of talent into more specialized firms focused on either long-only or absolute return hedge fund

strategies Due to these factors we do not consider these large asset managers to be direct competition to our

business

Instead we believe that the smaller and mid-sized asset managers with specialist strategies represent our

main competition Our client and potential client base is attracted to specialized firms which can operate

significantly below the potential capacity limit i.e the amount of funds that can be effectively managed for

particular strategy and offer more stable environment than larger firm Our current market share in the

management of U.S equities and fixed-income is very small As result we do not believe there are significant

impediments to growing our market share

We must compete with these smaller and mid-sized asset managersboth domestic and foreignon

number of factors including the performance of their investment advisory services the quality of employees

transaction execution products and services innovation reputation and price We may fail to attract new business

and we may lose clients if among other reasons we are not able to compete effectively

Governmental Regulation

Substantially all aspects of our businesses are subject to federal and state regulation
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Commission Regulation

Each of Wood Sovereign NIS and Boyd are registered with the Commission as investment advisors In

addition we recently filed uniform advisor registration with the Commission to become registered investment

advisor Every registered investment advisor must comply with the requirements of the Investment Advisers Act of

1940 as amended or the Advisers Act and related Commission regulations As compared to other disclosure-

oriented federal securities laws the Advisers Act and related regulations are restrictive and primarily intended to

protect the clients of registered investment advisors

Under the Advisers Act an investment advisor has fiduciary duties to its clients The Commission has

interpreted these duties to impose standards requirements and limitations on among other things trading for

proprietary personal and client accounts allocations of investment opportunities among clients use of soft

dollars execution of transactions and recommendations to clients Our subsidiaries make decisions to buy and sell

securities for their clients portfolios select broker-dealers to execute trades and negotiate brokerage commission

rates In connection with these transactions the subsidiary may receive soft dollar credits from broker-dealers that

have the effect of reducing certain of their expenses If their ability to use soft dollars were reduced or eliminated

as result of the implementation of new regulations operating expenses would likely increase

The Advisers Act also imposes specific restrictions on an investment advisors ability to engage in

principal and agency cross transactions As registered investment advisors our subsidiaries are also subject to many

additional requirements that cover among other things disclosures regarding their business to clients maintenance

of extensive books and records restrictions on the types of fees that they may charge custody of client assets client

privacy advertising and solicitation of clients These requirements will also apply to us once we are registered

Investment advisory agreements may not be assigned without the clients consent Registered investment advisors

are also required to adopt written compliance programs designed to prevent violations of the federal securities laws

These compliance programs must be reviewed annually for adequacy and effectiveness Registered investment

advisors must also designate chief compliance officer

The Commission is authorized to institute proceedings and to impose sanctions for violations of the

Advisers Act ranging from fines and censures to termination of an investment advisors registration Failure by

subsidiary or us to comply with the Commissions requirements could have an adverse effect on the non-complying

subsidiary and upon us Our subsidiaries are subject to periodic inspection by the Commission with Wood being

inspected in May 2007 and May 2008 and MS being inspected in November 2007 Deficiencies noted from these

examinations did not have any effect on the subsidiaries financial statements We believe that all of the subsidiaries

are in substantial compliance with the Advisers Act

The Commission revises the rules and regulations under the Advisers Act on periodic basis and number

of rule changes have been recently proposed such as revisions to the format and filing of Form ADV Part II which

all registered investment advisors are required to complete In addition there have been certain proposals in the

U.S Congress that would increase the regulation of various types of investment managers such as increased

regulation of managers of hedge ftmds It is difficult to predict whether any of these rules will be adopted or

proposals enacted Any rule or proposal could substantially increase our compliance costs

State Regulation

States may not generally impose their registration and licensing laws on Advisers Act registered investment

advisors transacting business in the state although they may require notice filings of documents the investment

advisors file with the Commission However states may impose examination requirements bonding or net capital

requirements that an investment advisor must meet for example Sovereign is required to meet the net capital

requirements of the state of North Carolina States may also impose investor suitability on investment advisors

recommendations and other standards Furthermore states may investigate and bring enforcement actions for fraud

and other similarmatters
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ERISA

Each of our subsidiaries is generally fiduciary under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of

1974 as amended or ERISA with respect to any benefit plan investor as defined in Section 342 of ERISA

clients with which it has an investment advisory agreement As result the subsidiaries are subject to ERISA and

to regulations under ERISA ERISA and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries under ERISA prohibit certain transactions involving ERISA

plan clients and provide monetary penalties for violation of these prohibitions

Non-U.S Regulation

With the introduction of the Plurima Titanium U.S Equity Fund to which Wood serves as an investment

advisor Wood also became subject to regulation by the Irish Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority To the

extent our subsidiaries extend their operations off shore further international oversight of parts of their businesses is

likely

Employees

At December 31 2008 we had 94 employees of whom 91 were full time employees 29 of our employees

were investment professionals including at Wood at Sovereign at MS and 10 at Boyd The average

professional experience of our investment staff was 22 years Fourteen of our staff were Certified Financial Analyst

charterholders Our marketing sales and client service staff comprised 19 employees We believe that we have

stable workforce and that our relationship with our employees is good

ETEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are factors that we believe individually or in the aggregate could materially and adversely

affect us our business results of operations or financial condition You should understand that it is not possible to

predict or identify all such factors and what follows should not be considered an exhaustive list of all potential risks

or uncertainties There may be additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently

deem inmiaterial that could have substantial adverse effect on us our business results of operations or financial

condition

Risks Relating to Our Business

Because we have limited operating history you may not be able to evaluate our current and future business

prospects accurately

We have limited operating and financial history upon which you can base an evaluation of our current

and future business Our actual results of operations may differ significantly from estimates

Our fees are subject to marketfluctuations

The investment advisory fees that we receive are based on the market values of the assets under their

management Accordingly decline in securities prices would be expected to cause our revenue and profitability to

decline by

causing the value of the assets under management to decrease which would result in lower investment

advisory fees or

causing negative absolute performance returns for some accounts that have performance-based fees

resulting in reduction of revenue from such fees
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In addition declining securities prices could cause some of our clients to withdraw funds from our

subsidiaries management in favor of investments that they perceive as offering greater opportunity and/or lower

risk which also would result in lower investment advisory fees

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing disruption for more than 12 months In recent

months the volatility and disruption have reached nearly unprecedented levels with significant declines in equity

securities globally with only modest recoveries from recent lows The volatility and steep declines in equity

markets together with the lack of investor confidence could exacerbate any decline in securities prices and assets

under management

The recession we are experiencing could further adversely impact our revenue if it leads to decreased

demand for investment products and services or higher withdrawal rate Any further decreases in the level of our

assets under management due to securities price declines or other factors would negatively impact our revenue and

profitability

Increases in interest rates in particular if rapid or high interest rates as well as any uncertainty in the

future direction of interest rates may have negative impact on our fixed-income products as rising interest rates or

interest rate uncertainty typically decrease the total return on many bond investments due to lower market valuations

of existing bonds Any decrease in the level of assets under management resulting from price declines interest rate

volatility or uncertainty increased redemptions or other factors could negatively impact our revenues and

profitability

Poor investment performance of our investment strategies could affect our sales or reduce the amount of assets

under management potentially negatively impacting revenue and profitability

Investment performance along with achieving and maintaining excellent distribution and client service is

critical to our success While strong investment performance of our investment strategies could attract new clients

poor investment performance on an absolute basis or as compared to third-party benchmarks or competitive

strategies could lead to loss of clients or an increase in withdrawals thereby lowering the amount of assets under

management and reducing the investment advisory fees we earn Past or present performance in our investment

strategies is not indicative of future performance

We derive substantially all of our revenues from contracts that may be terminated on short notice

Institutional and individual clients could terminate their relationships with our subsidiaries which would

reduce the amount of assets under management Our subsidiaries investment advisory agreements are generally

continuous but are often terminable without notice Certain issues may cause clients to terminate their investment

advisory agreements with our subsidiaries including changes in prevailing interest rates changes in investment

preferences of clients changes in management or control of clients or broker-dealers or others with whom

subsidiary has wrap program or other referral arrangement our loss of key investment advisory personnel or poor

investment performance as well as general loss of confidence in the capital markets If material number of our

subsidiaries investment advisory agreements were terminated for any reason significant amount of revenue could

be lost which would have material adverse effect on our business results of operations or financial condition

We depend on the continued services of our key personnel The loss of key personnel could have material adverse

effect on us

We depend on the continued services of our key personnel and the key personnel of our subsidiaries for our

future success The loss of any key personnel may have significant effect on our business results of operations or

financial condition The market for experienced investment advisory professionals is extremely competitive and is

increasingly characterized by frequent movement of employees among firms Due to the competitive market for

investment advisory professionals and the success achieved by some of our key personnel the costs to attract and

retain key personnel are significant and will likely increase over time In particular if we or any of our subsidiaries

lose any key personnel there is risk that we may also experience outflows from assets under management or fail to

obtain new business As result the inability to attract or retain the necessary highly skilled key personnel could
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have material adverse effect on our business results of operations or financial condition We carry key person

insurance on the following investment advisory personnel Jeffrey Hines Robert Kelly Robert Siefert Robert

Brooks Kent White and Brian Gevry with payouts to us or one of our subsidiaries as the beneficiary of

$3000000 $4000000 $1000000 $3000000 $2000000 and $1833000 respectively Such insurance may not

adequately compensate us for the loss of any of these individuals

We depend on third-party distribution sources to market our investment strategies and access our client base

Our ability to grow our assets under management is highly dependent on access to third-party

intermediaries including broker-dealer sponsors of wrap programs and other third-party solicitors At December 31

2008 broker-dealer wrap programs and clients referred to us by broker-dealers and other third-party solicitors

accounted for approximately 12% of our total assets under management We cannot assure you that these sources

and client bases will continue to be accessible to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all The absence of

such access could cause our assets under management to decline and have material adverse effect on our net

income In addition some of the third-party intermediaries offer competing investment strategies and may elect to

emphasize the investment strategies of competitors or their own firms

While we continue to diversify and add new distribution channels for managed accounts the recent

unprecedented market conditions have resulted in consolidation of and elimination of some financial seriice

companies The loss of any of the distribution channels afforded by these intermediaries and the inability to access

clients through new distribution channels could decrease our assets under management and adversely affect our

results of operations and growth potential In addition in the case of managed accounts offered through

intermediaries to their customers such intermediaries may reduce the fees that they remit to us as part of the

arrangements they have with us substantial reduction in fees received from third-party intermediaries could have

material adverse affect on our business

NISs institutional separate account business is highly dependent upon referrals from pension fimd

consultants Many of these consultants review and evaluate our products and our organization from time to time

Poor reviews or evaluations of either the particular product or of us may result in client withdrawals or may impact

NISs ability to attract new assets through these intermediaries As of December 31 2008 two consultants advising

the largest portion of our client assets under management represented approximately 20% of our assets under

management

We have significant goodwill and intangible assets subject to impairment analysis The impairment analysis is

based on subjective criteria and an impairment loss could be recorded

Goodwill represents the excess of the amount we paid to acquire our subsidiaries over the fair value of their

net assets at the dates of the acquisitions Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets we are required to test goodwill for impairment at least annually and between annual

tests if circumstances would require it The test for impairment of goodwill requires us to estimate our fair value

which is subjective process The estimation of our fair value is principally based on discounted cash flow

analysis of projected cash flows In preparing cash flow projections we consider the impact that previous and future

changes in our assets under management have on our projected revenues Among other things our assets under

management are impacted by our ability to retain clients market returns and our ability to obtain additional clients

In preparing the discounted cash flow analysis we also must select an appropriate discount rate The selection of

discount rate involves significant judgment and can significantly impact our fair value In connection with

acquisition of our subsidiaries we also acquired significant intangible assets principally related to existing customer

relationships These intangible assets are carried at amortized cost but are also subject to impairment testing

whenever events or circumstances indicate that their carrying values may not be recoverable These recoverability

tests are based on estimates of cash flows which are largely impacted by current levels of assets under management

and our expectations for client tenure As of December 31 2008 the net carrying amount of goodwill and other

intangible assets on our consolidated balance sheet were $32757000 and $32206000 respectively an aggregate of

62% of our total assets An impairment charge with respect to either or both depending on the amount could have

significant impact on our results of operations
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Market pressure to lower our subsidiaries investment advisory fees could reduce our profit margin

To the extent our subsidiaries are forced to compete on the basis of the investment advisory fees that they

charge to clients they may not be able to maintain their current fee structures Historically our subsidiaries have

competed primarily on the performance of their asset management services and not on the level of their management

fees relative to those of their competitors In recent years however there has been trend toward lower fees in

some segments of the asset management industry Fee reductions on existing or future business could have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations or financial condition

The due diligence process
that we undertake in connection with our acquisitions may not reveal all facts that may be

relevant in connection with an acquisition

Before making an acquisition of business we conduct due diligence that we deem reasonable and

appropriate based on the facts and circumstances applicable to the transaction Outside consultants legal advisors

accountants and investment banks may be involved in the due diligence process in varying degrees depending on the

type of target and the structure of the transaction Nevertheless when conducting due diligence and making an

assessment regarding business we rely on the resources available to us including information provided by the

target and in some circumstances third-party investigations The due diligence investigation that we carry out with

respect to potential acquisition may not reveal or highlight certain facts that could adversely affect the value of the

acquired business

Acquisitions of target businesses involve inherent risks that could threaten our ability to successfully consummate

transaction

As part of our business strategy we intend to pursue
additional acquisitions of asset management firms and

management agreements with mutual funds Future acquisitions could be accompanied by risks including among

others

inability to secure enough affirmative votes to gain approval of proposed acquisition from the target

companys stockholders

higher than anticipated acquisition costs and expenses and

the potential diversion of our managements time and attention

If one or more of these risks occur we may be unable to successfully complete an acquisition of target

business We may expend significant amount of working capital to pursue acquisitions that are not completed

Any of these results could have an adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Furthermore acquisitions of asset management companies and management agreements with mutual funds

are often subject to significant regulatory requirements and consents and we will not be able to consummate an

acquisition of certain types of asset management companies or obtain the assignment of mutual fund management

agreement without complying with applicable laws and regulations and obtaining required governmental or client

consents

Future acquisitions may have dilutive effect on existing holders of Common Stock

Future acquisitions of asset management firms which are paid for partially or entirely through the

issuance of stock or stock rights could prove dilutive to existing stockholders

We intend to further expand our asset management business either through the acquisition of specialist

asset management firms that will expand the investment strategies we can offer or more broadly oriented firms that

will add to the general level of assets being managed under equity and fixed-income strategies similar to those

currently in place Consistent with our prior acquisitions we expect that the consideration we might pay for any

future acquisition of asset management businesses could include our Common Stock rights to purchase our

Common Stock cash or some combination of the foregoing If we issue Common Stock or rights to purchase our
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Common Stock in connection with future acquisitions earnings loss per
share and then-existing holders of our

Common Stock may experience dilution

Ourfailure to successfully integrate an acquired businesses could have an adverse effect on our business financial

condition or results of operations

Once an acquisition is complete the integration of the operations of the business with our existing

businesses will be complex time-consuming and costly process Failure to successfully integrate the acquired

businesses and operations in timely manner may have material adverse effect on our business financial condition

or results of operations The difficulties of combining the acquired operations may include among other things

loss of key personnel either by us our subsidiaries or by the target company

termination of key investment advisory agreements by clients of the target company

operating significantly larger combined organization

coordinating geographically disparate organizations systems and facilities and

integrating corporate technological and administrative functions

Some of our revenue net income and cash flow is dependent upon incentive fees which may make it difficult for us

to achieve steady earnings growth on an annual basis

Some of our revenue net income and cash flow is variable due to the fact that incentive fees can vary from

period to period in part because incentive fees are recognized as revenue only when contractually payable or

crystallized This variability of revenue net income and cash flows may increase if our reliance on incentive fees

increases in the future as result of the introduction of new strategies or the acquisition of businesses that are more

reliant on incentive fees

Changes in tax law the interpretation of existing tax laws and amendments to existing tax rates could adversely

affect our business

Changes in tax legislation can affect investment behavior making investment generally and specific kinds

of investment products in particular either more or less appealing We cannot predict the impact of future changes

made to tax legislation on our business or can we predict the impact of future changes made to tax law on the

attractiveness of the types of securities in the accounts we manage Amendments to existing legislation particularly

if there is withdrawal of any tax relief an increase in tax rates or an introduction of withholding taxes or the

introduction of new rules may impact upon the decisions of either existing or potential clients Changes from time

to time in the interpretation of existing tax laws amendments to existing tax rates or the introduction of new tax

legislation could have material adverse effect on our business results of operations or financial condition

Changes in laws and regulations could adversely affect our business

Industry regulations are designed to protect our clients and other third parties who deal with us and to

ensure the integrity of the financial markets They are not designed to protect our stockholders The increased

potential of changes in laws or regulations or in governmental policies due to the state of the economy and current

political climate could limit the sources and amounts of our revenues increase our costs of doing business decrease

our profitability and materially and adversely affect our business Further our failure or that of subsidiary to

comply with applicable laws or regulations could result in fines censure suspensions of personnel or other

sanctions including revocation of investment advisor registration

If our techniques for managing risk are ineffective we may be exposed to material unanticipated losses

To manage the significant risks inherent in our business we must maintain effective policies procedures

and systems that enable us to identif monitor and control our exposure to market operational legal and
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reputational risks While we believe that our disciplined approach to risk management helps us to manage the risks

in our business our risk management methods may prove to be ineffective due to their design or implementation or

as result of the lack of adequate accurate or timely information If our risk management efforts are ineffective we

could suffer losses that could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of

operations In addition we could be subject to litigation particularly from our clients and sanctions or fines from

regulators

Our techniques for managing risks in client accounts may not fully mitigate the risk exposure in all

economic or market environments or against all types of risk including risks that we might fail to identify or

anticipate Any failures in our risk management techniques and strategies to accurately quantify such risk exposure

could limit our ability to manage risks in those accounts or to seek positive risk-adjusted returns In addition any

risk management failures could cause account losses to be significantly greater than historical measures predict Our

more qualitative approach to managing those risks could prove insufficient exposing us to material unanticipated

losses in the value of client accounts and therefore reduction in our revenues

Insurance coverage may not protect us from all of the liabilities that could arise from the risks inherent in our

business

We maintain insurance coverage against the risks related to our operations There can be no assurance

however that our existing insurance coverage can be renewed at commercially reasonable rates or that available

coverage
will be adequate to cover future claims If loss occurs that is partially or completely uninsured we could

be exposed to substantial liability

Risks Relating to the Asset Management Industry

The asset management industry has inherent risks and dfficult market conditions can adversely affect the ability of

our subsidiaries to successfully execute their investment strategies

Our subsidiaries performance in managing client assets is critical to retaining existing clients as well as

attracting new clients Our subsidiaries performance may be particularly critical where that subsidiary serves as

sub-advisor in connection with wrap program Our investment advisory strategies may perform poorly for

number of reasons including general economic conditions securities market conditions the level and volatility of

interest rates and equity prices such as we are experiencing currently competitive conditions liquidity of global

markets international and regional political conditions acts of terrorism regulatory and legislative developments

monetary and fiscal policy investor sentiment availability and cost of capital technological changes and events

outcome of legal proceedings changes in currency values inflation credit ratings and the size volume and timing

of transactions These and other factors could affect the stability and liquidity of securities and futures markets and

the ability of issuers other securities firms and counterparties to perform their obligations negatively impacting our

subsidiaries ability to successfully execute their investment strategies for accounts under their management

The asset management industry faces substantial litigation risks which could materially adversely affect our

business financial condition or results of operations or cause sign ficant harm to our reputation

We depend to large extent on the network of relationships that we and our subsidiaries have developed

with broker-dealers institutions and others and on our and their reputations in order to attract and retain clients If

client is not satisfied with our subsidiaries services such dissatisfaction may be more damaging to our business

than to other types of businesses Our subsidiaries make investment decisions on behalf of their clients that could

result in substantial losses to them If the clients suffer significant losses or are otherwise dissatisfied with these

services we or the applicable subsidiary could be subject to the risk of legal liabilities or actions These risks are

often difficult to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude often remain unknown for substantial periods

of time We may incur significant legal expenses in defending against litigation Substantial legal liability or

significant regulatory action against us or our subsidiaries could cause significant harm to our and their reputations

or result in material adverse effect on our business results of operations or financial condition
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The asset management business is intensely competitive

Our subsidiaries compete with other firmsboth domestic and foreignon number of factors including

the performance of their investment management services quality of employees transaction execution products and

services innovation reputation and price We may fail to attract new business and we may lose clients if among
other reasons we are not able to compete effectively

Employee misconduct could expose us to sign JIcant legal liability and reputational harm

We are vulnerable to reputational harm as we operate in an industry where integrity and the confidence of

our clients are of critical importance There is risk that our employees could engage in misconduct that adversely

affects our business results of operations or financial condition For example if an employee were to engage in

illegal or suspicious activities we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and suffer serious harm to our reputation

as consequence of the negative perception resulting from such activities financial position client relationships

and ability to attract new clients Our business often requires that we deal with confidential information If our

employees were to improperly use or disclose this information we could suffer serious harm to our reputation

financial position and current and future business relationships It is not always possible to deter employee

misconduct and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not be effective in all cases

Misconduct by our employees or even unsubstantiated allegations of misconduct could result in an adverse effect

on our reputation and our business

The asset management business is extensively regulated and the failure to comply with regulatory requirements may
harm our financial condition

Our business is subject to extensive regulation in the U.S by the Commission Our or subsidiarys failure

to comply with applicable laws or regulations could result in fines suspensions of personnel or other sanctions

including revocation of investment advisor registration We could also4ncur costs if new rules and other regulatory

actions or legislation require us or our subsidiaries to spend more time hire additional personnel or buy new

technology to comply with these rules and laws Additional changes in laws or regulations the interpretation or

enforcement of existing laws and rules or governmental policies could also have material adverse effect on us or

our subsidiaries by limiting the sources of revenues and increasing costs Our business may be materially affected

not only by securities regulations but also by regulations of general application We have installed procedures and

utilize the services of experienced administrators accountants and lawyers to assist in satisfying these requirements

However there can be no assurance that these precautions will protect us from potential liabilities

Operational risks may disrupt our business result in losses or limit our growth

We are heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of the technology systems supporting our

operations whether owned and operated by us or by third parties Operational risks such as trading errors or

interruption of our financial accounting trading compliance and other data processing systems whether caused by

fire other natural disaster power or telecommunications failure act of terrorism or war or otherwise could result in

disruption of our business liability to clients regulatory intervention or reputational damage and thus materially

adversely affect our business results of operations or fmancial condition Insurance and other safeguards might

only partially reimburse us for our losses Although we have back-up systems in place our back-up procedures and

capabilities in the event of failure or interruption may not be adequate The inability of our systems to

accommodate an increasing volume of transactions also could constrain our ability to expand our businesses

Additionally any upgrades or expansions to our operations and/or technology may require significant expenditures

and may increase the probability that we will suffer system degradations and failures
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Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

There is no public US market for our shares and an active market may not develop or be maintained which could

limit stockholders ability to sell shares of our Common Stock

Our Common Stock and Warrants are admitted for trading on AIM AIM is market designed primarily

for emerging or smaller companies The rules of this market are less demanding than those of exchanges in the U.S

An investment in shares traded on AIM is perceived to carry higher risk than an investment in shares quoted on

exchanges with more stringent listing requirements such as the New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq Global

Market In addition we may not always retain listing on the AIM and we may not be able to list or thereafter

maintain listing of our securities for trading on an exchange in the U.S

We incur increased costs as result of being US public reporting company

As public reporting company with securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended or the Exchange Act we incur significant legal accounting and other expenses In addition the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 as well as rules promulgated by the Commission thereunder require us to adopt corporate

governance practices applicable to U.S public companies These rules and regulations increase our legal and

financial compliance costs

The transfer of our shares of Common Stock is restricted

All of the shares of Common Stock are restricted securities as defined in Rule 144 promulgated under

the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities Act in that they were issued in private transactions not

involving public offering or pursuant to Regulation under the Securities Act Furthermore because we are

former shell company within the criteria established by the Commission sales under Rule 144 are not permitted

until at least July 25 2009

CIa can exercise control over all matters requiring stockholder approval and could make decisions about our

business that conflict with other stockholders

Clal owns approximately 51.2% of our outstanding shares of Common Stock This ownership gives Clal

approximately 49.8% of the total shares entitled to vote In addition pursuant to the terms of our certificate of

incorporation for so long as Clal or any affiliate of Clal owns of record at least 35.0% of the then issued and

outstanding shares of Common Stock Clal may elect and remove or replace up to six directors on our board of

directors In addition to the Clal directors our board of directors must consist of not more than three directors who

are executive officers of the Company and two non-executive directors who are designated by the board of directors

as independent As result of its stockholdings and representation on our board of directors Clal and the entities

and persons that directly or indirectly own Clal effectively control most matters affecting us including

the majority composition of our board of directors and through it any determination with respect to

our business direction and policies including the appointment and removal of officers

any determinations with respect to mergers or other business combinations

our acquisition or disposition of assets

our financing arrangements and

the payment of dividends on our stock

Clal will be in position to exert significant influence over the decisions of our management and issues

requiring stockholder approval Clal may vote in favor of certain matters regardless of whether we or any

stockholders other than Clal believe such matter to be in our best interest
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Our charter documents contain provisions that may delay defer or prevent change of control

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make it more difficult for third party to

acquire control of us even if the change in control would be beneficial to stockholders These provisions include

the following

allowing removal of directors for cause only and not allowing the removal of directors nominated by

Clal except for removal by Clal or any affiliate thereof so long as Clal or any of its affiliates owns of

record at least 5.0% of the then issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock

giving the board of directors the ability to authorize the issuance of shares of our preferred stock par

value $0.0001 without stockholder approval

vesting exclusive authority in the board of directors to fill vacancies on the board of directors either

than the vacancies of the directors nominated by Clal

limiting stockholders ability to call special meetings and

giving Clal or any affiliate thereof special rights so long as Clal or any of its affiliates owns of record

at least 35.0% of the then issued and outstanding Common Stock

We do not expect to pay any dividends for the foreseeable future

We may not pay any dividends to our stockholders for an extended time Any determination to pay

dividends in the future will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our results of

operations fmancial conditions contractual restrictions restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors our

board of directors deems relevant

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES

We lease 8483 square feet of office space in Sarasota Florida for use by Wood pursuant to sub-lease

arrangement which expires on October 31 2010

Sovereign leases 6257 square feet of office space in Charlotte North Carolina pursuant to lease which

expires on July 31 2012

NIS leases 9527 square feet of office space in Milwaukee Wisconsin for its operations This location

also serves as our corporate headquarters Its lease expires on February 28 2018 but can be terminated as of

February 28 2013 or extended to February 28 2023 NIS also leases 3788 square feet of office space in Chicago

Illinois which it uses for its marketing and client service operations Its lease expires on May 31 2010

Boyd leases 10900 square feet of office space in Cleveland Ohio pursuant to lease that expires on

October 31 2010 but can be extended to October 31 2015

We also lease 278 square feet of office space in London England for our employees who are located there

The lease expires on May 31 2009

We consider our office arrangements to be adequate for our current operations
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no governmental legal or arbitration proceedings to which we or the subsidiaries are party or to

which any of our or any of the subsidiaries property is subject the resolution of which would have material effect

on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

During 2008 we received an invoice for $670000 from the lawyers who worked on the placement of our

units on AIM in June 2007 We are disputing this invoice and at the current time believe we are not liable

Accordingly no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the invoice In the event that

we must pay all or part of this amount the consolidated income statement will be unaffected and we do not expect

our consolidated financial position to materially change

ITEM SuBMissioN OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The biographical summaries of our executive officers as of March 20 2009 are as follows

Name Age Position

Nigel Wightman 55 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Larry Haslee 49 Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Robert Kelly 64 Vice Chairman and Director

John Jack Fisher 54 Managing Director and President and Chief Executive Officer

of Wood and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign

Robert Brooks 54 Managing Director and Executive Vice President of NTS

Robert Siefert 60 Managing Director and President and Chief Investment Officer

of NTS

Brian Gevry 42 Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and co-Chief

Investment Officer of Boyd

Nigel Wightman was appointed as our President and Chief Executive Officer on April 21 2008 and as

Chairman of the board of directors on March 31 2008 having previously served as our Managing Director from

September 2007 Mr Wightman is also director of Wood Sovereign and MS and serves on the management

committee of Boyd Mr Wightman has over 30 years experience in the international asset management industry

and has worked in London and Hong Kong From October 2005 to September 2007 he served as the managing

partner
of Parkfield Capital LLP From 1997 to 2005 Mr Wightman was managing director of State Street Global

Advisors Limited an international fund management business In that role he was responsible for the purchase of

Gartmores 18 billion equity index business in 2001 and for securing 20 billion in outsourced assets from Abbey

National in 2004 He was responsible for forming and was director of life insurance company and several

mutual fund and asset management companies He also served as managing director of State Street Bank Europe

Limited and director of State Street Banque SA in Paris He worked from 1984 to 1995 for the NM Rothschild

Group in several of its asset management businesses including serving for four years as head of Asia Pacific based

in Hong Kong His other responsibilities at Rothschild included serving as the head of the fixed-income currency

and international equities and head of mutual funds He serves on the investment committees of the Royal Institute

for International Affairs and Brasenose College Oxford He received an MA in Politics Philosophy and Economics

from Brasenose College Oxford and an Phil in Economics from Nufield College Oxford
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Larry Haslee CPA was appointed as our Chief Financial Officer on July 14 2008 and our Secretary on

April 18 2008 Mr Haslee was appointed as MS Vice President and Chief Financial Officer on April 1994 and

as its Chief Compliance Officer on January 2005 Mr Haslee has also served as NISs Secretary and Treasurer

since its incorporation in 1993 Prior to working at NIS Ivfr Haslee worked as the Controller of NTS predecessor
National Investment Services of America Inc from February 1987 until March 1994 In that role his

responsibilities included financial reporting compliance human resources and technology From 1982 to 1987
Mr Haslee worked at Arthur Young Company as member of its entrepreneurial group where he provided audit
review and tax services to closely-held businesses Mr Haslee is Certified Public Accountant and graduated from
the University of Wisconsin Milwaukee with BBA in Accounting

Robert Kelly was appointed as our Vice Chairman on July 14 2008 and as director on March 31 2008
He is founder of NIS and was appointed as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1993 Before founding

NTS he worked at National Investment Services of America Inc from 1990 to 1994 Prior to that Mr Kelly was

president of Kelly Associates Inc which provided administrative services to pension and health plans until its

sale in 1990 Mr Kelly serves on the management committee of Boyd Mr Kelly is past president of the Society
of Professional Benefit Administrators and served as director of the International Foundation of Employee
Benefit Plans for 20 years Mr Kelly has also served as vice chairman of Saint Marys University of Minnesota
Mr Kelly attended the University of Notre Dame and Florida Atlantic University

John Jack Fisher was appointed as Managing Director on July 14 2008 as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Wood on June 16 2008 and as Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign on September 2008
Due to non-competition obligations Mr Fisher did not work during the period from April 2007 until he started at

Wood Prior to joining Wood Mr Fisher was founding partner in the investment banking firm Wilson/Bennett

Company from February 1987 and served as chairman and president of its subsidiary Wilson/Bennett Capital

Management Inc until September 2006 From September 2006 through April 2007 Mr Fisher acted as

consultant to that company Prior to Wilson Bennett Capital Management Inc Mr Fisher worked as vice

president with E.F Hutton Co from 1978 to 1987 Mr Fisher worked as an investment broker from 1977 to 1978
at Dean Witter Reynolds prior to which he served as staff economist at the Public Utilities Commission of Texas
Mr Fisher currently serves as an arbitrator for the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority and is member of the

International Executive Services Corporation non-profit organization that provides financial consulting services to

developing countries Mr Fisher graduated with BS in Accounting from Virginia Tech

Robert Brooks was appointed as Managing Director on July 14 2008 and as Executive Vice President of
NIS in 2000 Prior to that time Mr Brooks served as Vice-President and Senior Vice President at NIS Mr Brooks

is currently the lead officer for business development marketing client relations and consultant relations for NIS in

the U.S He is involved in long-term strategic planning for NIS Prior to joining NIS in 1994 Mr Brooks worked
at Zenith Administrators Inc from 1990 to 1994 as vice president and Chicago branch office manager He served

in the same capacity at Kelly Associates Inc from 1984 to 1990 Prior to Kelly Associates Inc Mr Brooks
worked in administration of large pension plans and was field service officer with the Teamsters Central States

Pension Fund from 1979 to 1984 Mr Brooks is an Investment Management Committee Member of the

International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans Mr Brooks attended St Thomas College and graduated from

Chicago State University

Robert Siefrrt CPA was appointed as Managing Director on July 14 2008 and as director of NTS on

April 2008 He was named President and Chief Investment Officer of MS on September 28 1995 Mr Siefert

was previously Senior Vice President of MS from 1993 to 1995 as well as Fixed-Income Portfolio Manager from
1994 to 1995 during which time he managed its fixed-income investment portfolios and operations Mr Siefert

previously worked for National Investment Services of America Inc where he was vice president and treasurer

from 1978 to 1994 In 1985 he also became fixed-income portfolio manager and served in that post until 1994
From 1974 to 1975 Mr Siefert was controller at NN Investment Services the predecessor to National Investment

Services of America Inc In 1975 following the founding of National Investment Services of America Inc
Mr Siefert continued as controller until 1977 when he was also named as assistant vice president Prior to his

tenure at NN Investment Services Mr Siefert worked at Peat Marwick Mitchell Co now KPMG LLP as

staff accountant in audit and tax from 1971 to 1973 Mr Siefert is Certified Public Accountant and graduated
from the University of Wisconsin Whitewater with BBA in Accounting
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Brian Gevry CFA was appointed Managing Director on January 15 2009 He was named the Chief

Executive Officer of Boyd on February 18 2006 and has been Co-Chief Investment Officer since July 2000

Mr Gevry initially joined Boyd in 1991 as Portfolio Analyst and acted as its Chief Operating Officer from 2000 to

February 17 2006 Mr Gevry is charter member of the CFA Institute and member of the CFA Society of

Cleveland and received his MBA from Case Western Reserve University and his BA from Cleveland State

University

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

There is currently no established public trading market for shares of our Common Stock in the United

States Shares of our Common Stock and our Warrants were admitted to trading on AIM on June 21 2007 Our

Common Stock trades on AIM under the symbol TAM There is no market for our restricted stock par value

$0.000 or Restricted Stock which converts on one-for-one basis into our Common Stock in certain events

The following table shows the closing mid-market prices for our Common Stock as reported on AIM for

the periods indicated The mid-market price is equal to the average of the best bid price and the best offer price

rounded to the second decimal point These prices are as reported by the London Stock Exchange in U.S Dollars

Price Per Share of Common

Stock

Quarterly Period Low High

3rd Quarter 2007 4.50 5.85

4th Quarter 2007 4.63 5.75

1st Quarter 2008 5.63 5.63

2nd Quarter 2008 5.63 5.63

3rd Quarter 2008 5.25 5.88

4th Quarter 2008 5.25 5.25

As of March 20 2009 there were approximately 102 record holders of our Common Stock and record

holders of our Restricted Stock

We have not paid any dividends on any of our shares of Common Stock to date and the payment of

dividends in the future will be contingent upon our revenues and earnings if any capital requirements and general

financial condition The payment of any dividends will be within the discretion of our then current board of

directors subject to the requirements of the Delaware General Corporation Law or DGCL Our board does not

currently recommend payment of any dividends There are currently no restrictions including where appropriate

restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to transfer funds to us in the form of cash dividends loans or advances

that currently materially limit our ability to pay dividends or that we reasonably believe are likely to limit materially

the future payment of dividends The holders of our Restricted Stock have no right to any dividends or to any other

distribution made or payable by us save for any valid return of capital

Unregistered Securities

In connection with the closing of the Boyd acquisition we issued 12500 shares of our Common Stock on

December 31 2008 to Boyd employee and 45500 shares of our Common Stock on January 2009 to other Boyd

employees all of which will vest on December 31 2009 The details of the Boyd transaction are described above in

BusinessThe AcquisitionThe Boyd Agreement The issuance of the 58000 shares of our Common Stock was

exempt from registration pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act because we did not engage in general

solicitation or advertising with regard to the issuance and sale of such securities and did not offer securities to the

public in connection with the issuance

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

The following discussion is designed to provide better understanding of significant trends related to our

consolidated financial condition and consolidated results of operations The discussion should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Overview

We were incorporated on February 2007 operating as special purpose acquisition company with the

objective of acquiring one or more operating companies engaged in asset management On June 21 2007 we

completed $120000000 private placement of 20000000 units each unit consisting of one share of Common

Stock and one Warrant The proceeds of this private placement net of costs and working capital approximately

$110373000 were held in trust fund pending approval by our stockholders of business combinations with

selected asset management firms that had an aggregate transaction value cash and other consideration liabilities

assumed and transaction costs of at least 70.0% of the amount initially held in the trust account

Following stockholder approval on October 2007 we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of

Wood and all of the outstanding membership interests of Sovereign each an asset management firm Following

second stockholder approval on March 31 2008 we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NIS another

asset management firm With the acquisition of NIS the aggregate transaction value in the stockholder-approved

business combinations exceeded 70.0% of the funds in the trust account With no further action on our part we
ceased to exist as special purpose acquisition company and the balance of the funds remaining in the trust account

was released to us On December 31 2008 we purchased all of the membership interests of Boyd another asset

management firm

Currently our efforts are focused on integrating these acquisitions Our goal in the short term is to obtain

economies of scale by integrating the operational and administrative activities of the four subsidiaries as well as any

future acquisitions including accounting information technology human resources and risk management We are

also reorganizing and adding to our sales staff so that we can include in proposals to our clients and prospects the

full range of our products Over the long term we expect to consolidate the various operations into one asset

management business operating in multiple locations

We also intend to acquire additional asset management firms and/or management agreements with mutual

funds We expect to fund any such acquisitions partly from the cash balances that remain from our private

placement of units and partly through issuance of additional Common Stock including through the conversion of

our outstanding Warrants although we may incur bank debt as well

We earn our operating revenues principally from investment advisory fees which are based on

percentage or range of percentages of the market value of assets under management and
vary among security

type and investment strategy and from client to client We also earn incentive fees from certain NTS clients as well

as referral fees from clients referred by MS to commingled funds investing in hedge funds sponsored by Attalus

Capital LP or Attalus As result our operating revenues are substantially influenced by the changes to our assets

under management and shifts in the distribution of assets under management among types of securities and

investment strategies Our assets under management fluctuate based on our investment performance both

absolutely and relative to other investment advisors the success of our sales and marketing efforts and our

acquisition of additional asset managers and/or management agreements with mutual funds material portion of

our results will be influenced by fluctuations in world financial markets Because they comprise the largest part of

our assets under management the performance of U.S fixed-income securities should have the greatest influence on

our results on long-term basis although our recent performance has been substantially affected by the negative

performance of the U.S equity markets and most hedge fund strategies over the second half of 2008

significant portion of our expenses including employee compensation and occupancy do not vary

directly with operating revenues While we expect to generate economies in operational areas we also expect in
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Wood acquisition on October 2007

Sovereign acquisition on October 2007

New accounts

Terminated accounts

Other inflows outflows to from existing

accounts

Other activity principally market movement

Balance at December 31 2007

change from acquired balance

NIS acquisition on March 31 2008

Boyd acquisition on December 31 2008

New accounts

Terminated accounts

Other inflows outflows to from existing

accounts

Other activity principally market movement

Balance at December 31 2008

change from beginning of year or

acquired balance

Wood Sovereign NIS Boyd Total

in millions

1488.0 1488.0

1817.0 1817.0

8.0 74.0 82.0

75.0 86.0 161.0

49.0 43.0 92.0

81.2 18.0 63.2

1290.8 1780.0 3070.8

13% 2% 7%

2884.1 2884.1

2856.0 2856.0

102.3 223.3 287.2 612.8

345.2 804.7 145.4 1295.3

51.4 26.6 118.2 143.0

328.6 61.6 22.0 412.2

667.9 1163.6 2885.7 2856.0 7573.2

48% 35% 0% 14%

In connection with our acquisition of Wood as of October 2007 we acquired $1488.0 million of assets under

management that were with institutional and retail customers and invested primarily in equity investments We

earned investment advisory fees of $1576000 over the balance of 2007

In connection with our acquisition of Sovereign as of October 2007 we acquired $1817.0 million of assets

under management that were principally with retail and institutional customers and invested primarily in fixed-

income investments We earned investment advisory fees of $1084000 over the balance of 2007

In connection with our acquisition of NIS as of March 31 2008 we acquired $2884.1 million of assets under

management that were principally with institutional customers and invested in fixed-income investments We

earned investment advisory fees of $5522000 over the balance of 2008

In connection with our acquisition of Boyd as of December 31 2008 we acquired $2856.0 million of assets

under management that were principally with institutional customers and invested in fixed-income investments

During the first half of 2008 we experienced significant decreases in our assets under management due to

the loss of accounts at Wood following the death of Woods founder Gary Wood in November 2007 and the

investment performance of equity securities of U.S issues with large market capitalizations on which Woods

portfolio management activities are primarily focused We also experienced the loss of $355 million Sovereign

account as well as number of smaller Sovereign accounts in the second quarter
of 2008 In the second half of

2008 the increased negative overall investment performance of equity securities of U.S issuers also substantially

reduced assets under management As result we experienced decrease of approximately $3800000 5% from

the annualized 2007 investment advisory fees for Wood and Sovereign Since December 31 2008 our aggregate

assets under management however declined only further $99.5 million to approximately $7473.7 million at

February 28 2009 principally related to equity market movements during the period although the effect was

partially offset by the net new account activity

implementing our business strategy to add selectively to our staff and this is likely to result in net increase in our

expenses

Assets Under Management

The activity related to our assets under management by subsidiary for the two years from inception to

December 31 2008 shown in the following table
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Our assets under management by major investment strategy were as follows at December 31 2008 and

7573.2 100.0%

The increase in assets under management in the U.S fixed-income investment strategy both in absolute

and relative terms primarily reflects the acquisitions of MS and Boyd and the decreases in the Wood assets noted

previously

Our assets under management by broad client type were as follows at December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

in millions of total in millions of total

The increase in assets under management with institutional accounts both in absolute and relative terms

primarily reflects the acquisitions of MS and Boyd and the decreases in the Wood and Sovereign assets noted

previously

In addition the activity related to the assets under management by Attalus on which we earn referral fees

was as follows in millions

15.5

190.8

806.2

change from acquired balance 14%

Assets managed by Attalus under the terms of our referral arrangement declined from $938.3 million at

March 31 2008 to $806.2 million at December 31 2008 reflecting the overall negative investment performance of

equity securities in the U.S during this period

2007

U.S fixed income

U.S equity

International equity

Balance at end of period

2008

in millions of total

6674.8

874.6

23.8

88.2%

11.5%

0.3%

2007

in millions of total

1833.1 59.7%

1237.7 40.3%

3070.8 100.0%

Institutional Retirement plans 3633.3 48.0% 1126.4 36.7%

Institutional Other 2197.3 29.0% 73.3 2.4%

RetailBroker/dealeraccounts 948.6 12.5% 1143.8 37.2%

RetailOther 794.0 10.5% 727.3 23.7%

Balance at end of period 7573.2 100.0% 3070.8 100.0%

Balance at March 31 2008

New accounts

Other inflows outflows to existing accounts

Other activity principally market movement

Balance at December 31 2008

938.3

43.2
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Results of Operations

Consolidated Results of Operations

Operating revenues

Investment advisory fees

Incentive fees

Referral fees

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Administrative

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Interest income

Interest expense

Income loss before taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Net income toss

Net income loss per share

basic

Operating Revenues

Period from

February

Year ended Percent of 2007 inception

December 31 operating to December 31

2008 revenue 2007

dollars in thousands except for per share

Operating revenues in 2008 reflect full year of operations for Wood and Sovereign and nine months of

operations for NIS Operating revenues in 2007 reflect three months of operations for Wood and Sovereign

Our investment advisory fees by subsidiary were as follows

2008 2007

in thousands

4149 1576

2687 1084

5522

12358 2660

During 2008 our investment advisory fees for Wood increased because the 2007 activity reflects only three

months of operations Relative to 2007 annualized amount of $6304000 our Wood investment advisory fees

decreased by $2155000 or 34% in 2008 The decrease in investment advisory fees partially reflects the 48%

decrease in Woods assets under management during 2008 because of the loss of accounts in the first half of 2008

following the death of Gary Wood Woods founder and the decrease in values for equity assets under management

Until our acquisitions of Wood and Sovereign on October 2007 our activities were limited to organizing

our operations preparing for and conducting our $120000000 offering of units listing those units on AIM
market operated by the London Stock Exchange and identifing and negotiating with potential target operating

businesses

Percent of

operating

revenue

data

12358 84% 2660 100%

518 4%

1799 12%

14675 100% 2660 100%

16283 111% 2490 94%

4190 29% 809 30%

6533 45% 829 31%

27006 184% 4128 155%

12331 84% 1468 55%
1032 7% 2191 82%

28
11327 77% 723 27%

4287 29% 280 11%

7040 48% 443 17%

0.34 0.04

0.34 0.03diluted

Wood

Sovereign

NIS

Total
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particularly when the deterioration intensified in the second half of 2008 We anticipate further decreases in the

Wood investment advisory fees in 2009 as we realize the full impact of the 48% decrease in assets under Woods

management Our investment advisory fees for Wood in 2009 will also be further impacted by fluctuations in equity

values during 2009 Woods assets under management declined by approximately $100 million as consequence of

additional decreases in equity values in the first two months of 2009

During 2008 our investment advisory fees for Sovereign also increased because the 2007 activity reflects

only three months of operations Relative to 2007 annualized amount of $4336000 our Sovereign investment

advisory fees decreased $1649000 or 38% in 2008 The decrease in investment advisory fees reflects the 35%

decrease in Sovereigns assets under management in 2008 The decrease in assets under management was due to the

loss of $355 million account as well as number of smaller Sovereign accounts in the first half of 2008 We
anticipate further decreases in Sovereign investment advisory fees in 2009 as we realize the full impact of the 35%

decrease in assets under management in 2008

During 2008 we earned investment advisory fees of $5522000 through NIS subsequent to its acquisition

as of March 31 2008 We anticipate investment advisory fees for NIS will increase by approximately $1800000 in

2009 due to full year of operations for MS

We acquired Boyd as of December 31 2008 and as result we will reflect full
year operations for Boyd

in 2009 Boyd had 2008 revenues of approximately $5900000 that are not reflected in our results

Our incentive fees of $518000 in 2008 reflect performance fees earned by MS through its management of

two preferred stock limited liability companies Due to the volatility of the preferred stock limited liability

companies returns it is not possible to forecast the level of performance fees that may be earned in 2009 if any

Our referral fees of $1799000 represent nine months of revenues attributable to NISs distribution

agreement with Attalus or an annualized amount of approximately $2400000 We expect our referral fees for 2009

will approximate the annualized amount for 2008 so long as new account activity offsets the impact of investment

performance

Operating Expenses

Administrative expenses in 2008 reflect full year of operations for Wood and Sovereign and nine months

of operations for NTS as well as corporate activities related to completing the acquisitions and other corporate

development activities registering our Common Stock under the Exchange Act and integration efforts

Administrative expenses in 2007 reflect activities during our initial organizing phase and three months of operations

for Wood and Sovereign following our acquisition of them as of October 2007 Administrative expenses in 2008

include employee compensation and benefits of $9036000 62% of revenues professional fees of $3025000

21% of revenues and occupancy expenses of $900000 6% of revenues Administrative
expenses

in 2007

include employee compensation and benefits of $1320000 50% of revenues professional fees of $511000 19%
of revenues and occupancy expenses of $82000 3% of revenues

The increase in employee compensation and benefits expense of $7716000 in 2008 from 2007 was

principally due to MS expenses of $3998000 51% of its revenues and full year of Wood and Sovereign

operations As percent of revenues employee compensation and benefits
expense increased primarily due to the

decrease in annualized revenues at Wood and Sovereign We expect full year of NIS operations will increase

employee compensation and benefits expense by approximately $1300000 and that the acquisition of Boyd will

increase employee compensation and benefits expense by approximately $3600000 58% of its revenue in 2009

from 2008 Tn addition we expect the integration of the operational administrative and sales staffs during 2009 will

offset any selective additions to our staff

The increase in professional fees of $2514000 in 2008 from 2007 primarily was the result of activities

related to registering our Common Stock under the Exchange Act During 2008 we incurred approximately

$1500000 of legal fees accounting fees and printing expenses related to registration We expect to reduce

professional expenses by approximately $1800000 in 2009 from 2008
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The increase in occupancy expenses of $818000 in 2008 from 2007 was principally due to NIS expenses

of $388000 and full year of Wood and Sovereign operations We expect full year of operations for NIS will

increase occupancy expenses by approximately $120000 and that the acquisition of Boyd will increase occupancy

expenses by an additional $250000 in 2009 from 2008

Overall we expect administrative expenses in 2009 will increase approximately $2100000 from 2008 due

to full year of NIS operations and approximately $5000000 due to the acquisition of Boyd However as noted

above we expect to reduce administrative expenses by approximately $1800000 through the reduction of

professional fees

Amortization and impairment of intangible assets represent non-cash charges related to the intangible assets

acquired in the purchases of the Wood Sovereign and MS businesses The amortization charge of $4190000 in

2008 represents full year
of amortization for the Wood and Sovereign intangible assets and nine months of

amortization for the MS intangible assets The amortization charge of $809000 in 2007 represents
three months of

amortization for the Wood and Sovereign intangible assets In 2008 we incurred impairment charges of $6533000

related to the customer relationship intangible assets of Wood and Sovereign We recognized $1792000 in the

second quarter of 2008 due to the loss of institutional accounts at Wood and Sovereign In the fourth quarter of

2008 we recognized further impairment charges of $4741000 related to these assets primarily due to the significant

equity market decreases over the second half of 2008 In 2007 we incurred an impairment charge of $829000

related the death of Gary Wood and the non-compete agreement we had executed with him at the time of the

acquisition of Wood As result of the impairment charges recognized during 2008 we expect our amortization

expenses will decrease to $3691000 in 2009 despite the approximate $300000 increase for the amortization of

intangible assets acquired in the Boyd purchase

Our operating loss in 2008 was $12331000 which was primarily attributable to the non-cash intangible

asset impairment charges of $6533000 the non-cash intangible asset amortization charges of $4190000 and the

professional fees of $1500000 related to the registration of our Common Stock under the Exchange Act Our

operating loss for the period from our inception February 2007 through December 31 2007 was $1468000

which was primarily attributable to the non-cash intangible asset amortization charges of $809000 and the non-cash

intangible asset impairment charges of $829000 and administrative expenses related to our organizing activities

Our interest income was $1032000 in 2008 compared to $2191000 in 2007 Substantially all of our

interest income is earned from invested cash balances from our $120000000 private placement of units In the

fourth quarter of 2008 we invested approximately $10700000 in corporate fixed-income securities to enhance our

average yield We expect interest income will continue to decrease in 2009 as we use part of the remaining cash

balances to fund deferred payments in connection with our acquisitions See Liquidity and Capital Resources

below

Our income tax benefit for 2008 was $4287000 resulting in an effective tax rate of 37.8% The income

tax benefit consists of refundable taxes under federal carryback provisions and deferred tax benefits recognized for

federal and state net operating loss carryforwards and other deductible temporary differences The effective tax rate

for 2008 principally reflects federal taxes at the statutory rate and state income taxes Our income tax expense
for

the period from our inception through December 31 2007 was $280000 resulting in an effective tax rate of 38.7%

The effective tax rate for 2007 reflects federal income taxes at the statutory rate and state income taxes

As result of the factors described above we had net loss of $7040000 for 2008 and net income of

$443000 in the period from our inception through December 31 2007
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Year Ended

December 31

2008

633000
12015000

12017000

Period from

February 2007

inception to

December 31

2007

2478000

89571000
106481000

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased to $633000 compared to $2478000 for the period

from our inception through December 31 2007 The decrease is attributable to the significant level of professional

fees related to the registration of our Common Stock under the Exchange Act and the decrease in interest income

The changes in working capital accounts from December 31 2007 to December 31 2008 were primarily related to

acquisitions of NIS and Boyd

Investing activities primarily reflect the placement of the net proceeds from our $120000000 private

placement of units into trust account in 2007 the release of funds from the trust account during 2007 and 2008 the

acquisitions of Wood and Sovereign in 2007 and the acquisition of NIS in 2008

Financing activities primarily reflect the net proceeds from our $120000000 private placement of units

and the repurchases of shares of Common Stock In 2007 we raised $110373000 from the private placement of

units net of the cost associated with issuing those units In 2007 we used $3892000 to repurchase Common Stock

from stockholders voting against the Wood and Sovereign acquisitions and electing to have their shares repurchased

In 2008 we used $12017000 to repurchase Common Stock from stockholders voting against the MS acquisition

and electing to have their shares repurchased

Our cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2008 were $18753000 compared to cash and cash

equivalents at December 31 2007 of $19388000 At December 31 2008 we also had short-term securities

available for sale of $10683000 which are available to fund operations and acquisition activities

At December 31 2008 we had the following cash obligations due under our acquisition agreements

Amounts due in 2009

Boyd acquisition payment made January 2009

NIS deferred acquisition payment due March 2009

Amounts due in 2011

NIS deferred acquisition payment due March 2011

Total cash obligations under acquisition agreements

7500000

645000

8145000

1000000

9145000

In addition to these cash obligations we have $960000 obligation due in 2011 under the Boyd
acquisition agreement that will be settled in 192000 shares of Common Stock except under certain circumstances

as defined in the Boyd Agreement
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Based on our current expectations for assets under management and operating revenues we estimate the

following additional contingent payments will be due under our acquisition agreements

Amounts due in 2009

Payment due based on Wood assets under

management at September 30 2009 The

maximum payment of $2000000 is prorated

based on $1.5 billion of assets under management

and up to 50% is payable in Common Stock

Payment due based on Sovereign assets under

management at September 30 2009 The

maximum payment of $2000000 is prorated

based on $1.9 billion of assets under management

and up to 50% is payable in Common Stock

Amounts due in 2011

Payment due based on Wood assets under

management at September 30 2011 The

maximum payment of $2000000 is prorated

based on $1.5 billion of assets under management

and up to 50% is payable in Common Stock

Payment due based on Sovereign assets under

management at September 30 2011 The

maximum payment of $2000000 is prorated

based on $1.9 billion of assets under management

and up to 50% is payable in Common Stock

Deferred variable payment due based on the

revenue run rate for Boyd as of December 31

2010 exceeding $6250000 The maximum

payment of $8000000 of which up to 35% is

payable in Common Stock

Total amounts due under acquisition agreements

Total Cash portion Stock portion

990000 495000 495000

1010000 505000 505000

2000000 1000000 1000000

1613000 807000 806000

1325000 663000 662000

8000000 5200000 2800000

10938000 6670000 4268000

12938000 7670000 5268000

We believe our current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term securities available for sale are

sufficient to fund our ongoing operations to fund current obligations under our completed acquisitions to fund the

expected cash portion of contingent payments due under our completed acquisitions and to provide consideration

for additional acquisitions We expect to fund future acquisitions partly through issuance of additional Common

Stock and with cash from the conversion of our outstanding Warrants although we may incur bank debt as well

In addition NIS has $950000 line of credit from financial institution secured by general business lien

The line of credit is payable on demand and bears interest at the prime rate which was 3.25% at December 31 2008

There were no outstanding borrowings on the NIS line of credit at December 31 2008

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that

affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses On an ongoing basis we evaluate our

estimates including those related to the estimated useful lives of intangible assets impairment of goodwill and other

intangibles potential valuation allowance for deferred tax asset and contingencies particularly litigation We base

our estimates on historical experience of our subsidiaries independent valuations and various other assumptions that

we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about

the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may
differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

We believe the following critical accounting policies govern the more significant judgments and estimates

used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements

Other Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill We estimate the fair value of intangible assets acquired in

business acquisitions including acquired customer relationships brands and non-compete agreements These

intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their useful lives consistent with the estimated useful

lives considered in determining their fair values In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

or SPAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets or SPAS 144 we test the

remaining carrying amounts of long-lived assets including intangible assets for recoverability whenever events or

circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable The recoverability tests generally

require us to project the future cash flows related to our subsidiaries and to compare the undiscounted cash flows

with the carrying amounts of the long-lived assets If the carrying amounts exceed the undiscounted cash flows we

recognize impairment charges to reduce the carrying amounts to the estimated fair values of the respective

intangible assets We estimate the fair values using an income approach that discounts the projected future cash

flows for the asset to present value using an appropriate discount rate The projection of future cash flows and the

selection of an appropriate discount rate involve significant judgments and estimates We also review amortization

methods and lives of those assets to determine if they remain appropriate

Primarily during the quarter ended June 30 2008 Wood and Sovereign lost certain significant customers

and related revenues Due to the significance of these losses we completed an impairment assessment under SPAS

144 of the carrying amounts for the customer relationship intangible assets from the Wood and Sovereign

acquisitions We concluded that the customer relationship intangible assets were impaired due to decreased actual

and forecasted cash flows of those subsidiaries and recorded impairment charges of $1792000 in the second quarter

of 2008

Further as result of the significant equity market-decreases over the second half of 2008 we reassessed

the recoverability of the customer relationship intangible assets acquired in the Wood Sovereign and MS
acquisitions at December 31 2008 We determined that the Wood customer relationship asset had been further

impaired and recognized $4540000 impairment charge We also determined that the Sovereign customer

relationship asset had been further impaired and recognized $201000 impairment charge We determined the

carrying amount of the NIS client referral relationship was still recoverable

In 2007 we incurred an impairment charge of $829000 related the death of Gary Wood and the non-

compete agreement we had executed with him at the time of the acquisition of Wood

Goodwill We perform goodwill impairment tests annually or whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill might not be recoverable using the two-step process

prescribed in SPAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The first step is to evaluate for potential

impairment by comparing the reporting units fair value with its carrying amount including goodwill If the

carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value we complete the second step under which the fair value

of the reporting unit is allocated to its assets and liabilities including recognized and unrecognized intangibles If

the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill is lower than its carrying amount goodwill is impaired and

written down to its implied fair value We complete our annual test for impairment during our fourth quarter
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We completed an evaluation of our fair value and the impact of such on our goodwill balance as of

December 31 2008 We estimated the fair value using discounted cash flow analysis excluding the Boyd

operations that were acquired on December 31 2008 and added Boyd at its acquired fair value discounted cash

flow analysis measures fair value by reference to projected future cash flows from operations over five-year

forecast period and an estimated residual value and through the application of discount rate to reflect those

amounts at their present value In preparing our cash flow forecasts we considered historical and projected growth

rates our business plans prevailing relevant business conditions and trends anticipated needs for working capital

and capital expenditures and historical and expected levels and trends of operating profitability We specifically

considered the impact that prior and future changes in our assets under management have on our future revenues

Among other things our assets under management are impacted by our ability to retain current clients and attract

new clients and by equity and fixed-income market returns During 2008 our assets under management were

impacted by significant decreases in the equity markets during the last half of 2008 and by the loss of customer

accounts during the first half of 2008 We specifically considered these impacts in projecting fee revenue over the

next several years As result of the fair value assessment we concluded that the value of our goodwill was

recoverable as of December 31 2008 While we assessed the carrying amount of goodwill not to be impaired as of

December 31 2008 should future results or economic events cause change in our projected cash flows or should

our operating plans change future determinations of fair value may not support the carrying amount of goodwill

Potential Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Asset We record income taxes using the liability method

specified by SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for both

the expected impact of differences between the fmancial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for the

expected future tax benefit from net operating losses carryforwards We establish valuation allowances when we

believe it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets including net operating loss

carryforwards will not be realized Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax

laws and rates on the date of enactment

At December 31 2008 we had deferred tax assets for net operating loss carryforwards of $1329000 and

temporary differences related to goodwill and intangible assets of $2779000 The net operating loss carryforwards

expire in 2022 and 2023 We determined that no valuation allowance was required at December 31 2008 based on

our operating forecasts that we developed in conjunction with our estimation of our fair value

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board or FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 or FiN 48 FIN 48 clarifies the

financial statement recognition threshold and measurement attribute of tax position taken or expected to be taken

on tax return in accordance with SFAS 109 This interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition

classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosures and transition Under FIN 48 we

apply more likely than not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties FiN 48 only allows the recognition of

those tax benefits that have greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon examination by taxing authorities

There was no impact on our consolidated financial position or consolidated results of operations from the adoption

of FIN 48

Fair Value of Financial Instruments In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No 107 Disclosure

About Fair Value of Financial Instruments or SFAS 107 we estimate fair value amounts using available market

information and valuation methodologies However considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data

to develop the estimates of fair value Accordingly the estimates presented herein may not be indicative of the

amounts we could realize in current market exchange or may be different from the value that other persons would

have attributed to the asset in accordance with SFAS 107 The use of different market assumptions or valuation

methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts

Our assets under management consist of equity and fixed-income securities We value equity securities

held in client portfolios at the last closing price on the primary exchange on which the securities are traded We

value fixed-income securities based on prices from independent sources such as listed market prices or broker or

dealer price quotations

Contingencies and Litigation Litigation outcomes and similar contingencies are often difficult to predict

and often are resolved over long periods of time Estimating probable losses requires the analysis of multiple
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possible outcomes that often depend on judgments regarding potential actions by third parties We record loss

contingencies as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements when it is probable or known that liability

has been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable If the reasonable estimate of the loss is

range and no amount within the range is better estimate the minimum amount of the range is recorded as

liability So long as we believe that loss in litigation is not probable then no liability will be recorded

During the course of an internal investigation management of MS found evidence suggesting that certain

of its customers plan assets were invested in manner inconsistent with the plans authorized investment policies

Management is currently in the discovery stages of its investigation and is assessing the potential impact to us and

NISs level of responsibility MS voluntarily settled with one of its affected customers in the amount of $60000
which was included in other current liabilities at December 31 2008 and paid in January 2009 Due to the

uncertainties involved we are unable to reasonably estimate the amount or range
of amounts of possible additional

losses associated with the resolution of this matter beyond what has been recorded While management cannot

estimate the amount or range of amounts of potential losses if any the maximum
exposure regardless of the

outcome would be limited to MSs professional liability and directors and officers liability insurance policy

deductible which is $500000

During 2008 we received an invoice for $670000 from the lawyers who worked on the placement of the

Common Stock on AIM in June 2007 We are disputing this invoice and at the current time believe we are not

liable Accordingly no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the invoice In the

event that we must pay all or portion of this amount the consolidated income statement will be unaffected and we

do not expect its consolidated financial position to materially change

We are from time to time involved in legal matters incidental to the conduct of our business and such

matters can involve current and former employees and vendors Management does not expect these would have

material effect on our consolidated fmancial position or results of operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations or SFAS

141R and SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of

Accounting Research Bulletin No 51 or SFAS 160 SFAS 141 will change how business acquisitions are

accounted for and SFAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be

recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as component of equity SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are

effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 January 2009 for us We do not expect the

adoption of SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 will have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 or SFAS 161 SFAS 161 amends and expands disclosures

about derivative instruments and hedging activities SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosures about the objectives

and strategies of derivative instruments quantitative disclosures about the fair value amounts of and gains and losses

on derivative instruments and disclosures of credit risk related contingent features in hedging activities SFAS 161

is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008 and will be effective for us in fiscal year 2009 Early

adoption is prohibited however presentation and disclosure requirements must be retrospectively applied to

comparative financial statements We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 will have material impact on our

consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles or SFAS 162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting

the principles used in the preparation of financial statements for non-governmental entities that are presented in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America SFAS 162 will be

effective 60 days after the Commission
approves

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boards amendments

to AU Section 411 We do not anticipate the adoption of SFAS 162 will have an impact our consolidated financial

statements
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In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No

157 or FSP No 157-2 to partially defer SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements or SFAS 157 FSP No 157-2

defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities except those that are

recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal

years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 We are currently

evaluating the impact of adopting the provisions of FSP No 157-2

In April 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 142-3 Determination of the Useful Lfe of

Intangible Assets or FSP No 142-3 FSP No 142-3 is intended to improve the consistency between the useful life

of recognized intangible asset and the period of the expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset

when the underlying arrangement include renewal or extension terms that would require substantial costs or result in

material modification to the asset upon renewal or extension Companies estimating the useful life of recognized

intangible asset must now consider their historical experience in renewing or extending similar arrangements or in

the absence of historical experience must use consider assumptions that market participants would use about

renewal or extension as adjusted for entity-specific factors FSP No 142-3 is effective for us beginning January

2009 We do not expect the impact of the adoption of FSP No 142-3 to have material effect on our consolidated

financial statements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DIscLosuREs ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Titanium Asset Management Corp

Milwaukee Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Titanium Asset Management Corp and

Subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

operations changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period

from February 2007 inception through December 31 2007 These consolidated financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of

their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from February

2007 inception through December 31 2007 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

is Cherry Bekaert Holland L.L.P

Charlotte North Carolina

March 30 2009
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents Note 10

Securities available for sale Note 10

Cash and cash equivalents held in trust Note

Accounts receivable

Refundable income taxes Note
Other current assets

Total current assets

Securities available for sale Note 10

Property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment net

Goodwill Note

Intangible assets net Note
Deferred income taxes Note

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued income taxes Note

Acquisition payments due Note

Deferred revenues

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Acquisition payments due Note

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies Notes and 12
Common stock subject to possible conversion 20000000 shares at

conversion value Note

Stockholders equity Note
Common stock $0.0001 par value 54000000 shares authorized

20464002 and 22993731 shares issued and outstanding at December

31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Restricted common stock $0.0001 par value 720000 shares authorized

612716 and 696160 shares issued and outstanding at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively

Preferred stock $0.0001 par value 1000000 shares authorized none

issued

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings deficit

Other comprehensive loss

Unearned compensation

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

See notes to consolidatedfinancial statements

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

18753 19388

10683

55587

4041 388

512

908 115

34897 75478

672

543 19

87 16

456

32757 21987

32206 15340

4202 377

105190 113185

663 149

657

8145

273

1516 455

10597 1261

1889

12486 1261

55587

99694

6597
163
232

92704

105190

Titanium Asset Management Corp
Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands except for share and per share amounts

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

55892
443

56337

$113185
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Titanium Asset Management Corp
Consolidated Statements of Operations

in thousands except for per share amounts

Period from

February

2007

inception

through

December 31
2007

Fee income

Operating expenses

Administrative

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Other Income

Interest income

Interest expense
_________________________________

Income loss before taxes

Income tax expense benefit
_____________________________

Net income loss
_______________________________

Earnings loss per share

Basic 0.34 0.04

Diluted 0.34 0.03

See notes to consolidatedfinancial statements

Year Ended

December 31
2008

14675 2660

16283 2490

4190 809

6533 829

27006 4128

12331 1468

1032 2191

28

11327 723

4287 280

7040 443
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Titanium Asset Management Corp
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of intangible assets

Accretion of acquisition payments

Deferred income taxes

Changes in assets and liabilities

Increase in accounts receivable

Increase in other current assets

Increase in accounts payable

Increasedecrease in income taxes

Increase in other current liabilities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents held in released from trust

Purchase of short-term securities available for sale

Purchase of securities available for sale

Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of common stock units

Costs associated with share issue

Common stock redeemed

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning

Ending

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Income taxes paid

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities

Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale

Paid-in capital attributed to common stock repurchase rights not executed

Fair value of placement agent warrant

Payments due in connection with acquisitions

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Year ended

December 31
2008

Period from

February

2007 through

December 31

2007

7040

4262

6533
26

3823

29
607

511

1070
604

633

443

825

829

377

388
115

149

657

455

2.478

326 19
55587 55587
10651

968
31627 33965

12015 89571

120025

9652
12017 3892
12017 106481

635 19388

19388

18753 19388

606

163

55587

10365

2091
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Titanium Asset Management Corp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Nature of business

Titanium Asset Management Corp the Company was incorporated on February 2007 The Company

commenced operations as special purpose acquisition company to acquire one or more operating companies

engaged in the asset management industry The Company was admitted to trading on AIM market operated by

the London Stock Exchange on June 21 2007

On October 2007 the Company acquired all of the voting common stock of Wood Asset Management Inc

Wood and all of the membership interests of Sovereign Holdings LLC Sovereign two asset management

firms On March 31 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of National Investment

Services Inc NIS third asset management firm After such business combinations the Company ceased to

act as special purpose acquisition company On December 31 2008 the Company acquired all the membership

interests of Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC Boyd fourth asset management firm See Note for

descriptions of these acquisitions The Companys strategy is to manage these operating companies as an integrated

business

Note Significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America summary of the Companys significant accounting policies are as

follows

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned

subsidiaries All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

Fee income Revenue is recognized when the following criteria are met evidence of an arrangement exists the

price is fixed or determinable collectability is reasonable assured and delivery has occurred or services have been

rendered The Company bills its investment advisory fees in accordance with the contractual arrangements and as

services are performed Fees are calculated based on the fair value of the assets under management and may be

billed in arrears or advance These amounts are included in accounts receivable or deferred revenues in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets As of December 31 2008 the Company had deferred revenue for

services billed in advance of $273000

Investment advisory fees also include incentive fees that may be earned by the Company Incentive fee

arrangements generally entitle the Company to participate on fixed-percentage basis in the net profits earned by

the limited liability companies to which NIS is the managing member and Cayman Island exempted company to

which MS acts as an investment advisor The Companys participation percentage is multiplied by the net profits

earned by these managed companies to determine the amount of the incentive fee If losses are incurred the losses

are netted against net profits before the Company is eligible to participate in any incentive fees Incentive fees if

any are calculated and paid on an annual basis Pursuant to the preferred accounting method under Emerging Issues

Task Force EITF Issue D-96 Accounting for Management Fees Based on Formula such incentive fee income

is recorded at the conclusion of the performance period when all contingencies are resolved The Company

recognized $518000 in incentive fees in the year
ended December 31 2008 and none for the period from

February 2007 to December 31 2007

Cash equivalents and concentration of credit risk For purposes of reporting cash flows the Company considers all

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents The Company

periodically maintains cash balances with fmancial institutions which at times may exceed insured limits

Management believes that the use of quality financial institutions minimizes the risk of loss associated with cash and

cash equivalents
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Titanium Asset Management Corp
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Investments in securities Investments in available for sale securities consist of corporate bond securities and an

investment in commingled stock fund None of the Companys securities are classified as trading or held to

maturity Available for sale securities are stated at fair value and unrealized holding gains and losses net of the

related deferred tax effect are reported as separate component of stockholders equity

Interest on corporate bond securities is accrued based on the terms of the securities Realized gains and losses

including loss from declines in value of specific securities determined by management to be other-than-temporary

are included in consolidated income Realized gains and losses are determined on the basis of the specific securities

sold

For the investment in the commingled stock fund realized gains and losses including losses from declines in value

that are determined by management to be other-than-temporary are included in consolidated income Realized

gains or losses are determined on the basis of the sale of shares of the commingled fund or distributions received

from the commingled fund

Fair value of financial instruments In accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards SFAS No 107 Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instruments estimated fair values have

been determined by the Company using available market information and valuation methodologies described below

However considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value

Accordingly the estimates presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in

current market exchange The use of different market assumptions or valuation methodologies may have material

effect on the estimated fair values The carrying amounts of cash accounts receivable other current assets accounts

payable acquisition payments due and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments

The Companys assets under management consist of equity and fixed-income securities held in client portfolios

Equity securities are valued at the last closing price on the primary exchange on which the securities are traded

Fixed-income securities are valued based on prices from independent sources such as listed market prices or broker

or dealer price quotations

Receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts Accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal

trade terms Management does not require collateral from customers Management reviews accounts receivable on

monthly basis to determine if any receivables will potentially be uncollectible Included in the allowance for

doubtful accounts is any balance considered uncollectible plus general reserve based on managements assessment

of customers overall financial condition After all attempts to collect receivable have failed the receivable is

written off against the allowance At December 31 2008 and 2007 management did not believe an allowance for

doubtful accounts was necessary due to the nature of the Companys receivables and history of collections

Properly and equipment Property and equipment is stated at cost or acquired values Major expenditures for

property and equipment are capitalized while replacements maintenance and minor repairs that do not improve the

utility or extend the lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred When assets are retired or otherwise

disposed of their costs and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and resulting gains or

losses are included in income Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives

of the related assets Depreciation is based on the following estimated useful lives Office furniture and fixtures and

equipment to
years

Business combinations Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the

business combination is measured as the
aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given

liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Company in exchange for control of the

acquiree plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination The acquirees identifiable assets and

liabilities are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date
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Titanium Asset Management Corp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Goodwill and intangible assets Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of purchased businesses over the fair

value of the net assets acquired

The Company tests the goodwill balance for impairment annually and between annual tests if circumstances would

require it The Companys goodwill testing is two-step process with the first step being test for potential

impairment by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill If the

fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount then no impairment exists If the carrying amount of

the reporting unit exceeds the fair value the Company completes the second step to measure the amount of the

impairment if any The Company completes the annual test for impairment during its fourth quarter

Identifiable intangible assets are carried at amortized cost Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over

their useful lives and amortization is computed using the straight line method over their expected useful lives

Intangible and other long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No 144 Accounting

for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets pursuant to which an impairment loss is recognized if the

carrying amount of long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value Long-lived assets are tested for

recoverability whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be

recoverable

Advertising costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense was approximately $283000

and $6000 for the year
ended December 31 2008 and for the period from February 2007 inception to

December 31 2007 respectively

Operating leases Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease

term Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases such incentives are recognized

as liability The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as reduction of rental expense on straight-line

basis

Share-based payments Share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date The fair values of equity-settled share-based transactions are determined based on the

current values of the Companys common stock and the restrictions on the grants including future service periods

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on straight-line

basis over the vesting period based on the Companys estimate that all grants will eventually vest At each balance

sheet date the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest The impact of the

revision of the original estimates if any is recognized in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period with

corresponding adjustment to uneamed compensation

Income taxes Income taxes are calculated using the liability method specified by SFAS No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes SPAS 109 The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for both the expected

impact of the differences between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and for the

expected future tax benefits to be derived from offsetting the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards against

taxable income if any The Company establishes valuation allowance to reflect the likelihood of realization of

deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are reduced if necessary by valuation allowance if it is more likely than

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainly in Income Taxes an Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 clarifies the

financial statement recognition threshold and measurement attribute of tax position taken or expected to be taken

on tax return in accordance with SPAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes This interpretation also provides

guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosures and

transition Under PIN 48 the Company applies more likely than not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties

FIN 48 only allows the recognition of those tax benefits that have greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained

upon examination by taxing authorities There was no impact on the Companys consolidated financial position or

consolidated results of operations from the adoption of FIN 48
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Titanium Asset Management Corp
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Earnings per share The Company computes earnings per share EPS in accordance with SFAS No 128

Earnings per Share SFAS 128 SFAS 128 requires presentation of both basic and diluted EPS on the face of the

income statement Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income loss available to common stockholders

numerator by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted EPS gives

effect to all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period Potentially dilutive securities include

the incremental common shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants using the treasury stock method as well as

shares of restricted stock because the number of common shares into which they are convertible is contingent on the

achievement of ten-day average share price exceeding the conversion price or change in control as discussed in

Note For the period ended December 31 2007 approximately 696000 shares of outstanding restricted stock

have been excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS because the ten-day average share price did not exceed the

conversion price at any time in the reporting periods In addition in periods of net loss all potentially dilutive

common shares are excluded from the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding as their

inclusion would have an anti-dilutive effect on net loss per share As result of the net loss for the year ended

December 31 2008 all potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS due to

their anti-dilutive effect

Operating segments The Company identifies its operating segments on the basis of internal reports about the

components of the Company that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate

resources to the segment and to assess its performance Because of the similarities in the nature of the services each

of the Companys subsidiaries provide the type of customers they serve and the environment in which they operate

the Company aggregates the subsidiaries as single operating segment

Accounting estimates The preparation of consolidated fmancial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting periods Actual results could differ from those estimates

Recent accounting pronouncements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 141R and

SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of Accounting
Research Bulletin No 51 SFAS 160 SFAS 141R will change how business acquisitions are accounted for and

SFAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be recharacterized as

noncontrolling interests and classified as component of equity SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are effective for

fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 January 2009 for the Company The adoption of SFAS

141R and SFAS 160 is not expected to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS 161 SFAS 161 amends and expands disclosures about

derivative instruments and hedging activities SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosures about the objectives and

strategies of derivative instruments quantitative disclosures about the fair value amounts of and gains and losses on

derivative instruments and disclosures of credit risk related contingent features in hedging activities SFAS 161 is

effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008 and will be effective for the Company in fiscal year

2009 Early adoption is prohibited however presentation and disclosure requirements must be retrospectively

applied to comparative financial statements The adoption of SFAS 161 is not expected to have material impact on

the Companys consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

SFAS 162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the

principles used in the preparation of financial statements for non-governmental entities that are presented in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America SFAS 162 will be

effective 60 days after the Securities and Exchange Commission approves the Public Company Accounting
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Titanium Asset Management Corp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Oversight Boards amendments to AU Section 411 The Company does not anticipate the adoption of SFAS 162

will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements

In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157

FSP No 157-2 to partially defer SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 FSP No 157-2

defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities except those that are

recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal

years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company is currently

evaluating the impact of adopting the provisions of FSP No 157-2

In April 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 142-3 Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible

Assets FSP 142-3 This guidance is intended to improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized

intangible asset and the period of the expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset when the

underlying arrangement includes renewal or extension terms that would require substantial costs or result in

material modification to the asset upon renewal or extension Companies estimating the useful life of recognized

intangible asset must now consider their historical experience in renewing or extending similar arrangements or in

the absence of historical experience must use consider assumptions that market participants would use about

renewal or extension as adjusted for entity-specific factors FSP 142-3 is effective for the Company beginning

January 2009 The adoption of FSP 142-3 is not expected to have material impact on the Companys

consolidated financial statements

Note Stockholders equity

The Companys initial capitalization consisted of 2880000 shares of common stock and 720000 shares of

restricted stock collectively Founding Stock issued on March 2007

During 2007 the Company raised $120 million before expenses through private placement of units consisting of

one share of common stock and warrant to purchase one share of common stock at $4.00 per share Monies raised

through the private placement net of costs and working capital were held in trust account pending stockholder

approval of acquisitions Business Combinations and the Company meeting certain other investment

requirements These warrants expire in June 2011 unless earlier redeemed by the Company The holders of

common stock were entitled to require the Company to repurchase their shares if the Company sought approval for

Business Combination and the stockholder voted against the proposal Because the conditions of repurchase of

these shares of common stock were not solely within the control of the Company in accordance with FASB 150

Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity the Company

classified the shares of common stock subject to possible conversion as temporary equity outside of stockholders

equity

In connection with the Wood and Sovereign acquisitions the Company repurchased 700000 shares at $5.50 per

share plus approximately $42000 in interest from stockholders that voted against the acquisition proposals and

elected to have their common stock shares repurchased In addition pursuant to requirements in the certificate of

incorporation that the Founding Stock represent no more than 15.2% of the Companys capital stock after such

repurchase the Company cancelled 95360 shares of common stock and 23840 shares of restricted stock owned by

holders of Founding Stock In connection with the MS acquisition the Company repurchased 2208453 common

shares at $5.32 per share plus approximately $270000 in interest from stockholders that voted against the

acquisition proposal and elected to have their common stock shares repurchased In addition pursuant to

requirements in the certificate of incorporation that the Founding Stock represent no more than 15.2% of the

Companys capital stock after such repurchase the Company cancelled 333777 shares of common stock and

83444 shares of restricted stock owned by holders of Founding Stock

With the completion of the Wood Sovereign and MS acquisitions the Company met the investment requirements

related to the units thereby relieving the Company of any further obligation to repurchase common stock issued as

part of the units As result the Company reclassified its common stock subject to possible conversion in the

amount of $55587000 to additional paid-in capital The remaining funds were released from the trust account at

that time as well
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The Company has wholly-owned subsidiary Titanium Incentive Plan LLC TIP that owns 306358 shares of

the Companys common stock all of which is Founding Stock TIP was created at the time of the Companys

organization to hold shares of its common stock for one-time awards to the employees of acquired companies It

was not intended as vehicle to provide additional on-going equity compensation to employees As with all other

shares of Founding Stock the shares of common stock held by TIP are held in escrow until June 21 2010 Pursuant

to individual share grant agreements TIP allocated all of its shares to Wood and Sovereign employees around the

time of the acquisitions in 2007 The Company acquired TIP on July 14 2008 and amended and restated the terms

of these share grant agreements effective as of July 15 2008 to among other things reflect reductions to the

individual grant amounts related to the cancellation of shares of Founding Stock described above after the

consunmation of the Wood Sovereign and NIS acquisitions Each grantee received non-voting membership

interest in TIP At June 21 2010 the grantees non-voting membership interest in TIP terminates and the grantee is

entitled to an in-kind distribution of his or her allocated shares of common stock The shares are subject to forfeiture

in the event that the grantees employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries is terminated for any reason

other than death of the grantee unless otherwise determined by the board of directors At December 31 2008 no

further shares of our common stock held by TIP have been allocated and 97011 shares of our common stock held by

TIP were unallocated due to grantee terminations and are available for future grants

In connection with the acquisition of Boyd the Company committed to the awarding of 58000 shares of common
stock to certain employees of Boyd of which 12500 were issued on December 31 2008 These shares of common
stock vest based on continuing employment through December 31 2009 Subject to obtaining valuation for such

awards the Company has credited paid-in capital $232000 based on an estimated $4.00 per share value which

will be charged to expense over the vesting period

The shares of restricted stock carry voting rights and no rights to dividends except in the case of liquidation of the

Company They convert on one for one basis to shares of common stock if at any time within five years of their

issue the ten-day average share price of the common stock exceeds $6.90 or if there is change in control as
defined in the Companys certificate of incorporation

In connection with the private placement the Company granted an option to Sunrise Securities Corp to acquire

million units at price of $6.60 This option was valued at $2091000 using the Black-Scholes model and was

credited to paid-in capital

Note Comprehensive Income Loss

Comprehensive income loss for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from inception February

2007 to December 31 2007 are as follows

Period from

February 2007

Year ended inception

December 31 to December 31
2008 2007

in thousands

7040 443

163
7203 443

Net income loss
Unrealized loss net of tax benefit

Comprehensive income loss
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Note Acquisitions

Acquisition of Wood

On October 2007 the Company completed the acquisition of all of the voting common stock of Wood an asset

management firm in the equity and fixed-income markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the voting common stock of Wood the sellers received $27500000 in

cash and 727273 shares of common stock of the Company with fair value of $4000000 The sellers may receive

additional payments should Wood achieve certain revenue and assets under management milestones during the

three-year period after closing At December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment that may be made under

the sale and purchase agreement is $5000000 in cash and common stock

The aggregate purchase price of Wood was approximately $33164000 including acquisition costs of $1664000

The following summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition Goodwill recorded from

this transaction is tax deductible

Goodwill 19865000

Intangible asset customer relationships 12026000

Intangible asset non-compete covenant 829000

Intangible asset brand 444000

33164000

Acquisition of Sovereign

On October 2007 the Company completed the acquisition of all of the membership units of Sovereign an asset

management firm in the equity and fixed-income markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the membership units of Sovereign the sellers received $4500000 in

cash and 181818 shares of common stock with fair value of $1000000 The sellers may also receive additional

payments should Sovereign achieve certain revenue and assets under management milestones during the three-year

period after closing At December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment that may be made under the sale and

purchase agreement is $5000000 in cash and common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $5801000 including acquisition costs of $301000 The

following summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition Goodwill recorded from this

transaction is tax deductible

Goodwill 2122000

Intangible asset customer relationships 2665000

Intangible asset non-compete covenant 833000

Intangible asset brand 181000

5801000

Acquisition of NIS

On March 31 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding common stock of NIS NIS is

an asset management firm in the fixed-income and equity markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the common stock of NIS the sellers received $29684000 in cash

The sellers will also receive guaranteed deferred payments of $645000 in 2009 and $1000000 in 2010 These

guaranteed payments are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as current obligation and long-term

obligation discounted to its net present value of $915000 The sellers may also receive additional payments should

NIS achieve certain revenue milestones during 2009 As of December 31 2008 the remaining maximum payment is
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approximately $2500000 either all in cash or at the sole discretion of the Company combination of cash and up

to 50% in common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $32834000 including acquisition costs of $1590000 The

following summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition Goodwill recorded from this

transaction will be tax deductible

Current assets 3123000

Property and equipment 130000

Goodwill 7091000

Intangible asset customer relationships 23089000

Current liabilities 599000

32834000

Acquisition of Boyd

On December 31 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of all the membership interests of Boyd an asset

management firm in the equity and fixed-income markets

In consideration for the sale and purchase of the membership interests of Boyd the sellers received $7500000 in

cash which was paid January 2009 and 192000 shares of common stock valued at $960000 based on the

closing price of the Companys common stock on December 31 2008 that will be issued to the sellers in 2011 The

purchase price is subject to post-closing working capital adjustment and other adjustments The sellers could also

receive up to an additional $8000000 in purchase price should Boyd meets specific revenue targets as of

December 31 2010 The additional deferred payment is payable 65% in cash and 35% in additional shares of

common stock

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $8814000 including acquisition costs of $354000 The

following summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

acquisition The estimated fair values are subject to change pending fmal analysis of the total purchase price and

the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed Goodwill from this transaction will be tax

deductible

Current assets 700000

Property and equipment 69000

Goodwill 3679000

Intangible asset customer relationships 4500000

Current liabilities 134000

8814000
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Pro forma effect of acquisitions

The results of operations
of Wood and Sovereign have been included in the consolidated results of operations of the

Company since October 2007 while the results of operations
of NIS have been included in the consolidated

results of operations of the Company since April 2008 The results of operations for Boyd have not yet been

included in the consolidated results of operations of the Company

The unaudited pro forma information below presents the results of operations as if the acquisitions of Wood

Sovereign NTS and Boyd had occurred on the first day of the periods presented The unaudited pro forma

information is presented for informational purposes only and is not intended to represent or be indicative of the

results of operations of the combined companies had these events occurred at the beginning of the periods presented

nor is it indicative of future results Because of the pro forma net losses for each of the periods potentially dilutive

securities have been excluded from the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share as they would have an

anti-dilutive effect

Period from

February 2007

Year ended inception

December 31 to December 31

2008 2007

Total revenue 23226000 27025000

Net loss 7124000 363000

Net loss per share

Basic 0.35 0.03

Diluted 0.35 0.03

Pro forma weighted average number of common

shares outstanding

Basic 20598318 12403672

Diluted 20598318 12403672

Note Goodwill and intangible assets

The changes in goodwill for the period from February 2007 to December 31 2007 and for the year ended

December 31 2008 are as follows

Wood acquisition 19865000

Sovereign acquisition
2122000

Goodwill at December 31 2007 21987000

NIS acquisition 7091000

Boyd acquisition
3679000

Goodwill at December 31 2008 32757000

The Company completed its annual evaluation of its fair value and the impact of such on its goodwill balance as of

December 31 2008 The assessment of fair value was principally based on discounted cash flow analysis of

projected cash flows In preparing the cash flow projections the Company considered the impact that the significant

decreases in the equity markets over the last half of 2008 and the loss of customer accounts over the first half of

2008 had on the Companys assets under management and the resulting impact on projected
fee revenue over the

next several years As result of the fair value assessment the Company concluded that the value of its goodwill

was recoverable
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The changes in intangibles assets for the period from February 2007 to December 31 2007 and for the year ended

December 31 2008 were as follows

Wood acquisition

Sovereign acquisition

Amortization expense

Impairment

Intangible assets at December 31 2007

NIS acquisition

Boyd acquisition

Amortization expense

Impairment

Intangible assets at December 31 2008

13299000

3679000

809000

829000

15340000

23089000

4500000

4190000
6533000
32206000

One of the principals from Wood with whom the Company had non-compete agreement passed away in

2007 As result the Company wrote off the remaining $829000 balance related to that intangible asset

As result of the principals death in 2007 Wood lost several accounts primarily in the second quarter of

2008 The Company determined that the loss of these accounts impaired the original value of the Wood
customer relationships and recorded an impairment charge of $1478000 in the second quarter of 2008

In the second quarter of 2008 Sovereign lost an institutional account that represented approximately 19%
of the assets under management at the time of the Sovereign acquisition As result the Company
determined that the loss had impaired the original value of the Sovereign customer relationships and

recorded an impairment charge of $314000 in the second quarter of 2008

As result of the significant equity market decreases over the second half of 2008 the Company reassessed

the recoverability of the customer relationship intangible assets acquired in the Wood Sovereign and NES

acquisitions at December 31 2008 The Company determined that the Wood customer relationship asset

had been further impaired and recognized $4540000 impairment charge The Company also determined

that the Sovereign customer relationship asset had been further impaired and recognized $201000

impairment charge The Company determined the carrying amount of the MS client referral relationship

was still recoverable

Identifiable intangible assets net of amortization at December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

Wood customer relationships

Wood brand

Sovereign customer relationships

Sovereign non-compete agreement

Sovereign brand

MS client referral relationship

Boyd customer relationships

Totals

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net

in thousands

$12026 8850 $3176 $12026 601 $11425
444 139 305 444 28 416

2665 966 1699 2665 95 2570
833 347 486 833 70 763

181 76 105 181 15 166

23089 1154 21935

4500 4500

$43738 11532 $32206 $16149 809 $15340
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The Company has reassessed the remaining useful lives of these assets in connection with the recoverability

assessments Amortization is based on the following estimated remaining useful lives Wood intangible assets 2-3

years Sovereign intangible assets 3-4 years NTS client referral relationship asset 14 years and Boyd customer

relationships asset 15 years

The estimated annual amortization expense
for each of the next five years is as follows

Significant components of income tax expense benefit are as follows

Current

Federal

State

Deferred

Federal

State

Year ended

December 31

2008

Period from

February 2007

inception

to December 31

2007

The following is reconciliation between the expected income tax expense benefit using the federal statutory tax

rate 34%and the income tax expense benefit

Income tax expense benefit at federal statutory rate

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit

Other

Income tax expense benefit

Period from

February 2007

inception

to December 31
2007

Year

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Note 7Income taxes

Amount

3691000

3691000

3664000

2436000

1879000

Income tax expense benefit

in thousands

464 545

112

464 657

3055 313
768 64

3823 377

4287 280

Year ended

December 31

2008

in thousands

3851 246

507 31

71

4287 280
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The Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the following temporary differences between financial

accounting and tax bases as follows

December 31 December 31
2007

Net operating loss carryforwards

Goodwill and intangible assets

Other
______________________________________

Total deferred tax asset

At December 31 2008 the Company had federal net operating loss canyforward of approximately $3126000 that

expires in 2023 and state net operating loss canyforwards totaling approximately $4620000 that expire in 2022 and

2023

No valuation allowance was established because in managements opinion it is more likely than not the deferred

asset will be realized

Note Commitments

Operating leases The Company leases certain corporate offices office equipment and computer software under

lease agreements with terms up to five years with options to renew for additional periods and requirements for the

Company to pay property taxes insurance and maintenance Rent expense was $900000 and $82000 for the year

ended December 31 2008 and for the period from February 2007 to December 31 2007 respectively The

following is schedule by year of the future minimum lease payments due under agreements with terms extending

beyond one year

Year ending

December 31 Amount

2009 878000
2010 750000
2011 289000
2012 252000

2013 198000

Thereafter 880000

Retirement vians The Company through each of its subsidiaries sponsors defined contribution plans covering

substantially all employees The Company contributed approximately $66000 and $9000 in matching funds for the

year ended December 31 2008 and for the period February 2007 to December 31 2007 respectively The MS
plan also provides profit-sharing component whereby MS can make discretionary contribution to the plan that is

allocated based on the compensation of eligible employees The discretionary contribution for 2008 was $272000

Note Line of credit

The Company through NTS has $950000 line of credit with financial institution secured by general business

lien The line of credit is payable upon demand and bears interest at 3.25% No amounts were outstanding under

the line of credit at December 31 2008

2008

in thousands

1329

2779 378

94

4202 377
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current securities available for sale

Corporate bonds

Noncurrent securities available for sale

Commingled stock fimd

Category used for Fair Values

Level

in thousands

Titanium Asset Management Corp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 10 Fair Value Measurement

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS 157 which establishes requirements regarding the disclosure

of fair value information SFAS 157 requires fair values to be disclosed based on three levels of input Level

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level observable inputs other than Level

prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other

inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the

assets or liabilities or Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include financial instruments the

value of which is determined using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques as

well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant judgment or estimation

The assets that the Company will continue to measure at fair values on recurring basis consisted of the following at

December 31 2008

Level Level

18753

10683

672

30108

Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of money market funds and their cost approximates fair value The

Companys investments in corporate bonds relate to investments made primarily to increase the Companys average

interest yield At December 31 2008 the unrealized gain on corporate bonds was approximately $32000 The

Companys investment in commingled stock fund relates to its investment in the Plurima Titanium U.S Stock

Fund sub-fund of the Dublin-based Plurima Funds mutual fund complex to which the Company serves as an

investment advisor The fund was initiated July 2008 At December 31 2008 the unrealized loss in the fund was

approximately $294000 which reflects the losses in the underlying values of the equity securities in which the fund

invests caused primarily by the decreases in the equity markets over the last half of 2008 Based on the Companys

ability and intent to hold this investment for reasonable period of time sufficient for recovery of fair value the

Company did not consider this investment to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31 2008

Note 11 Major customer

NIS has an Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement with Attalus Capital L.L.C Attalus under which MS is

engaged to assist Attalus with Taft-Hartley pension plan assets by referring investors and providing advice on

potential investment issues support in preparing marketing and reporting materials and to assist in marketing

presentations In consideration of these services MS receives specified percent per annum of fees received by

Attalus for clients referred to Attalus by NIS as defined by the agreement The fee is paid quarterly in arrears The

fees under this arrangement were $1799000 for 2008 The referral arrangement has term through December

2009 unless earlier terminated and is subject to renewal
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Note 12 Contingencies

During the course of an internal investigation management of MS found evidence suggesting that certain of its

customers plan assets were invested in manner inconsistent with the plans authorized investment policies

Management is currently in the discovery stages of its investigation and is assessing the potential impact to the

Company and NISs level of responsibility NIS voluntarily settled with one of its affected customers in the amount

of $60000 which was included in other current liabilities at December 31 2008 and paid in January 2009 Due to

the uncertainties involved the Company is unable to reasonably estimate the amount or range of amounts of

possible additional losses associated with the resolution of this matter beyond what has been recorded While

management cannot estimate the amount or range of amounts of potential losses if any the maximum
exposure

regardless of the outcome would be limited to MSs professional liability and directors and officers liability

insurance policy deductible which is $500000

During 2008 the Company received an invoice for $670000 from the lawyers who worked on the placement of the

Companys shares of common stock on AIM in June 2007 The Company is in dispute with the lawyers with

respect to this invoice and at the current time believes there is no liability Accordingly no provision has been made
in these consolidated financial statements for the invoice In the event that liability does arise the consolidated

income statement will be unaffected and the Company does not expect its consolidated financial position to

materially change

The Company is from time to time involved in legal matters incidental to the conduct of its business and such

matters can involve current and former employees and vendors Management does not expect these matters would

have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

Note 13 Earnings per Share

The computation of basic and diluted EPS is as follows

Period from

February 2007

inception

to December 31
2008

Basic EPS

Net income loss

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS
Net income loss

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Dilutive warrants

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted EPS

7040000 443000

20406318 11529853

0.34 0.04

7040000 443000

20406318 11529853

3177723

20406318 14707576

0.34 0.03

Because of the net losses for the year ended December 31 2008 potentially dilutive securities have been excluded

from the calculation of basic and diluted EPS as they would have an anti-dilutive effect

Year ended

December 31
2008
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in the Rules 3a-1 5e and 5d- 15e under the Exchange Act required by Exchange Act

Rules 3a-1 5b or 5d- 15b our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to ensure that

information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commissions rules and forms and

include controls and procedures designated to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in such reports

is accumulated and communicated to our management including the principal executive officer and principal

financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include report
of managements assessment regarding

internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report
of our registered public accounting firm due to

transition period established by rules of the Commission for newly public companies

Changes in internal control over financial reporting During the fourth quarter we made the following

changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting We added professional accounting staff member

with significant accounting and financial reporting experience We also improved our procedures to coordinate the

timely and consistent reporting of information regarding assets under management to enhance senior management

review In addition we instituted review process as part of the quarterly and annual closing process that requires

certain members of management to specifically consider factors affecting the recoverability of intangible assets

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item with respect to our executive officers is set forth in Part of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K The information required by this item with respect to our directors our Audit

Committee and its members and audit committee financial expert is incorporated by reference from our definitive

proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Proposal OneElection of

Directors The information required by this item with respect to compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange

Act is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

under the caption Stock OwnershipSection 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

We have adopted Code of Ethics that applies to all of our executive officers and directors The Code of

Ethics is posted on our website The Internet address for our website is http//www.ti-am.com Copies of our Code

of Ethics may also be obtained without charge by sending written request to our Secretary at our executive offices

We intend to satisf the disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to

or waiver from provision of this Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer principal financial

officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing
similar functions by posting such

information on our website at the address and location specified above
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ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for

the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Compensation of the Named Executive Officers and

Directors

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item with respect to the security ownership of certain beneficial owners
and the security ownership of management is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the

2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Stock OwnershipBeneficial Ownership of Certain

Stockholders Directors and Executive Officers

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth as of December 31 2008 information with respect to our compensation

arrangements

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Future Issuance under

Number of Securities to be Weighted-average Equity Compensation

Issued upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans Excluding

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Securities Reflected in the

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights First Column
Equity compensation plans

approved by security

holders

Equity compensation plans

not approved by security
4oooooo $5.30 970 12

holders

Total 4000000 $5.30 97011

Consists of currently exercisable unit purchase options or UPOs to purchase 2000000 units i.e 2000000
shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $6.60 and 2000000 Warrants which are exercisable for $4.00

per
share of Common Stock granted to certain officers directors and employees of Sunrise Securities Corp or

Sunrise and Sunrise charitable foundation as partial compensation for Sunrises services as placement agent
for our private placement not part of an ongoing plan Each UPO expires on June 20 2012 If however
UPO is exercised later than June 22 2011 then no Warrants will be issued and the exercise price will be
reduced to $5.50 per Unit The Warrants are non-callable

Titanium Incentive Plan LLC or TIP wholly owned subsidiary of ours owns 306358 shares of our Common
Stock TIP was created at the time of our organization to hold shares of our Common Stock for one-time

awards to the employees of our acquired companies It was not intended as vehicle to provide additional on
going equity compensation to our employees The shares of Common Stock held by TIP are held in escrow
until June 21 2010 Pursuant to individual share grant agreements TIP allocated all of its shares to Wood and

Sovereign employees around the time of our acquisitions in 2007 We amended and restated the terms of these

share grant agreements effective as of July 15 2008 Each grantee received non-voting membership interest

in TIP At June 21 2010 the grantees non-voting membership interest in TIP terminates and the grantee is

entitled to an in-kind distribution of his or her allocated shares of our Common Stock The shares are subject to
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forfeiture in the event that the grantees employment with us or any of our subsidiaries is terminated for any

reason other than death of the grantee unless otherwise determined by our board of directors or an authorized

committee thereof In the event of the grantees death the beneficiary identified by the grantee shall have

rights to receive the shares to which the grantee was entitled upon their release from escrow At December 31

2008 97011 shares of our Common Stock held by TIP were unallocated due to grantee
terminations and

available for future grants

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIIucToR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item with respect to certain relationships and related transactions is

incorporated by reference from our defmitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under

the caption Certain Relationships and Related Transactions The information required by this item with respect to

director and committee member independence is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for

the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Proposal OneElection of Directors

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for

the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption Ratification of the Appointment of Our Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm

PART IV

ITEM 15 ExHIBITs FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year Ended December 31 2008 for the period from

February 2007 inception to December 31 2007

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the year ended December 31 2008

and for the period from February 2007 inception to December 31 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Year Ended December 31 2008 for the period from

February 2007 inception to December 31 2007

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule

Financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is

shown in the financial statements or notes thereto
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Exhibits

Exhibit Descrittion

2.1 Sale and Purchase Agreement among Titanium Asset Management Corp Wood Asset Management Inc
and number of individuals dated September 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53 352

2.2 Sale and Purchase Agreement among Titanium Asset Management Corp Sovereign Holdings LLC and

JARE Inc and its owners dated September 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53352

2.3 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Titanium Asset Management Corp National Investment

Services Inc NIS Holdings Inc and the shareholders of NIS Holdings Inc dated February 28 2008

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

2.4 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of November 2008 by and among Titanium Asset

Management Corp BWAM Holdings LLC Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC the common
members of BWAM Holdings LLC and for limited purposes the preferred members of BWAM Holdings

LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrants Form 8-K filecL with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 2009 File No 000-53352

2.5 Amendment No to Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of December 30 2008 among
Titanium Asset Management Corp Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC and Mr Michael Bee
acting in his capacity as the agent and attorney in fact with the authority to act on behalf of BWAM
Holdings LLC the common members of BWAM Holdings LLC and for limited purposes the preferred

members of BWAM Holdings LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrants Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2009 File No 000-53352

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Titanium Asset Management Corp incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

3.2 Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Titanium Asset Management Corp
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

3.3 Bylaws of Titanium Asset Management Corp incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008
File No 000-53352

4.1 Form of Common Stock Share Certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008
File No 000-53352

4.2 Form of Warrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

4.3 Warrant Deed dated as of June 21 2007 between Titanium Asset Management Corp and Capita Registrars

Jersey Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

4.4 Registration Rights Agreement between Titanium Asset Management Corp and the parties on the signature

pages thereto dated June 21 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-

53352
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4.5 Investor Rights Agreement between Titanium Asset Management Corp Sunrise Securities Corp and

Seymour Pierce Limited dated June 21 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008

File No 000-53352

4.6 Form of Unit Purchase Option between Titanium Asset Management Corp and certain Employees and

Affiliates of Sunrise Securities Corp incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008

File No 000-53352

4.7 Share Escrow Agreement dated as of June 21 2007 by and among Titanium Asset Management Corp

Founding Stockholders and Capita Trust Company Jersey Limited incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

4.8 Form of Lock In Deed for Individuals incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008

File No 000-53352

4.9 Form of Lock In Deed for Entities incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-

53352

4.10 Form of Lock In Deed for Acquisitions incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008

File No 000-53352

10.1 Letter Agreement between Thomas Hamilton and Titanium Asset Management Corp dated November 12

2007 as amended incorporated by Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Amendment No to Form 10 filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 15 2008 File No 000-53352

10.2 Amended and Restated Fee Arrangement Agreement between Titanium Asset Management Corp and

Integra Management Limited dated July 22 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.3 Employment Agreement between Nigel Wightman and Titanium Asset Management Corp dated

September 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.4 Employment Agreement between Jeffrey Hines and Sovereign Holdings LLC incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.5 Employment Agreement between John Fisher and Wood Asset Management Inc dated June 2008

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.6 Employment Agreement between Robert Kelly and National Investment Services Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.7 Employment Agreement between Robert Brooks and National Investment Services Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.8 Employment Agreement between Robert Siefert and National Investment Services Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352
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10.9 Letter of Appointment to the Board of Directors between Yehoshua Abramovich arid Titanium Asset

Management Corp dated July 17 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008
File No 000-53352

10.10 Letter of Appointment to the Board of Directors between Avigdor Kaplan and Titanium Asset Management

Corp dated July 17 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-

533 52

10.11 Indemnification Agreement dated July 17 2007 by and between Titanium Asset Management Corp and

Yehoshua Abramovich incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-

53352

10.12 Indenmification Agreement dated July 17 2007 by and between Titanium Asset Management Corp and

Avigdor Kaplan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.13 Amended and Restated Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement dated February 13 2006 by and between

Attalus Capital L.L.C and National Investment Services Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13

to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.14 Referral Letter Agreement dated December 2006 between Attalus Capital L.L.C and National

Investment Services Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-

53352

10.15 Titanium Asset Management Corp Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.16 Titanium Incentive Plan LLC Operating Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.17 Amendment to Titanium Incentive Plan LLC Operating Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.17 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.18 Titanium Incentive Plan LLC Form of Grant Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.19 Business Note between National Investment Services Inc and Park Bank dated September 22 2004

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.20 Oral Agreements regarding Director Compensation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July

25 2008 File No 000-53352

10.21 Form of Indemnification Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrants

Amendment No to Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 15 2008
File No 000-53352

lO.22t Employment Agreement between Brian Gevry and Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC dated

November 2008
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11.1 Statement regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings

21.1 Subsidiaries of Titanium Asset Management Corp

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 3a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a of the Securities Exchange Act

32.1 ChiefExecutive Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 ChiefFinancial Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted from these exhibits pursuant to Item 601b2 of

Regulation S-K The Company hereby undertakes to furnish supplementally copies of any of the omitted schedules

and exhibits upon request by the Commission

indicates management contract or compensatory arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Dated March 31 2009

TITANTUM ASSET MANAGEMENT CORP

By Is Nigel Wightman ______________
Name Nigel Wightman
Title Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated

Signature Capacity Date

Is Nigel Wightman Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 31 2009

Nigel Wightman Principal Executive Officer

Is Larry Haslee Chief Financial Officer March 31 2009

Larry Haslee Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Is Robert Kelly Director March 31 2009

Robert Kelly

Is Avigdor Kaplan Director March 31 2009

Avigdor Kaplan

Is Yehoshua Abramovich Director March 31 2009

Yehoshua Abramovich

Is Raymond Suplee Director March 31 2009

Raymond Suplee

Is Thomas Hamilton Director March 31 2009

Thomas Hamilton
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